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RESULTS

¥4

Year ended 31 March
HE=ZH=Z1—HILFE

TURNOVER
Contract revenue
Property gross rental income

Contract costs
Property expenses

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Administrative and other expenses

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of
jointly-controlled entities

Tax

NET PROFIT

BALANCE SHEETS
¥R

At 31 March
W=H=+—H

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Properties held for development

Goodwill

Interests in jointly-controlled
entities

Prepaid land lease and other
non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Issued capital
Reserves
Proposed final dividends

Total equity
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T A S0 5 B

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZRENE CERFRLE CRZAE EFFHE FENE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T SR SR
2,064,944 1,510,651 1,262,663 1,504,731 1,407,882
13,314 18,545 12,152 1,304 -
2,078,258 1,529,196 1,274,815 1,506,035 1,407,882
(1,940,307)  (1,447,906)  (1,203,545)  (1,437,072)  (1,343,421)
(1,283) (1,441) (1,118) (177) -
136,668 79,849 70,152 68,786 64,461
40,609 36,322 65,278 18,170 8,464
(50,611) (42,613) (55,669) (35,948) (24,942)
(33,160) (30,504) (20,903) (980) (1,872)
- - - (11) 258
(17,408) (5,914) (17,041) (9,488) (7,349)
76,098 37,140 41817 40,529 39,020
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“RENE ZEFRLE ZFEA “ERELE FFNE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T T T T T
613,104 412,810 518,790 229,800 16,800
17,965 12,204 20,504 17,840 4118
115,500 115,586 115,500 - -
= - - 14,717 14,717

- - - 1 2
114,985 9,709 670 33,836 -
703,175 650,869 371,320 395,294 446,997
(532,467) (622,974) (370,257) (326,108) (283,988)
(537,745) (269,627) (385,275) (135,955) (352)
494,517 308,577 271,252 229,435 198,314
37,132 23,519 23,519 23,519 23,519
457,385 285,058 247,733 205,916 170,091
- - - - 4,704

494,517 308,577 271,252 229,435 198,314
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

B8
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B R
o Turnover up 36% to HK$2,078 million from 2006/07 of e BEBRRTEETNTHEET B
HK$1,529 million RN/ RLENT LR - TILEEE
7t L Ft36%

° Net profit up 105% to HK$76.1 million from 2006/07 e wWHFRHEAE LT AT - TEBL B
of HK$37.1 million BEN/BEEN=Z2TLtH —TEET
EF+105%

o Basic earnings per share up to HK6.5 cents from e FRERBHEH BN ZLEMN39
2006/07 of HK3.9 cents WAl BT Ze. 5% Al

PERFORMANCE FHFRB

Net profit for the year attributable to shareholders was B 5% JE Al 47 B 35 F1) 3 %8 %5 76,098,000 76 (—F
HK$76,098,000 (2007: HK$37,140,000). Basic earnings per & -b4F : 37,140,000% 5T) © 5 I 3% 4% 2 F1 6.5
share was HK6.5 cents (2007: HK3.9 cents). WAl (= FFZ-L4E : 3.9%Al) -

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final FHERBHIRBRYIME (B LE: K) -
dividend (2007: nil).

TURNOVER (HK$ million) PROFITS (HK$ million)
BER(AEBL) HA(HEEBT)
2,500 80
70
2,000
60
1,500 50
40
1,000
30
500 20
10

0 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 0 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
B E: 8y

BUSINESS REVIEW

Construction, Maintenance and Engineering Work

We are pleased to report that our construction segment has
recorded significant growths and encouraging results for the
year under review. Turnover from construction, maintenance
and engineering contracts was HK$2,065 million for the year
under review, an increase by 37% from HK$1,511 million for
the previous year. Overall gross profit from our construction
segment increased to HK$125 million, which is double that
of HK$63 million for the previous year. We have benefited
from the HKSAR Government’s increased spending on public
facilities and environment whilst the major contracts we
successfully secured during the year include improvement
works to Kowloon Park Swimming Pool and Hong Kong
Stadium, Hong Kong Coliseum, Queen Elizabeth Stadium as
well as Hong Kong mid and high levels areas water supply.

As of 31 March 2008, the total and outstanding values of the
Group’s substantial contracts on hand were approximately
HK$3,977 million and HK$1,988 million respectively. These
contracts will be completed in around two to three years’

time.

Property Investment

In October 2007, we completed the acquisitions of the
entire issued share capital and shareholder’s loans of Winner
City Investment Limited (“Winner City”) and Frason
Holdings Limited (“Frason”) for an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$145 million. The major assets of
Winner City and Frason consist of the properties at Nos.
92A-C Pokfulam Road, Hong Kong (“Pokfulam Properties”)
and No. 155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon
(“Waterloo Road Properties”) respectively. For the purposes of
determining the consideration for these acquisitions, Pokfulam
Properties and Waterloo Properties have been valued at
HK$185,000,000 and HK$115,750,000 by independent
professional valuers as of 26 August 2007. These acquisitions
constituted a very substantial acquisition and connected

transaction, details of which are disclosed in the Company’s

circular dated 21 September 2007.

e AT

M- RERTE

AR KRR - R PIBEAAEE RN > T 2 5
Sy R BRAT ORI YR A N A o M
BAEEN BE - REXTHEAHZIEEZE S
20.65f% ¥ I > B8 AR Z 151 1 s oo 3 m37% o
T T 5 43 T =2 % 3l =B R 38 in %125,000,0009
TG > K 4 22.63,000,0009 JG I W A o A 4R H A2
SO 7 R IR JBORF 1 2 b i R B 8 O T 2
T RAEEN > AREE G FEA
#9655 JUHE 2 T vk B A WK ER Y - s S
HE - -PFASOBETHIASE LR UREBE
o 2 1y B DA b b [ A K B TR o

R-BRNE=ZH=+—H  KEHZHRAF
BH A 4 488 T R 58 R A 40 18 4 B 49 %5397 745
WL K108 IL - HEGAMN —E=4FRK

SERL °

IES /S

BT RLETH AL M5B EWinner
City Investment Limited ([ Winner City]) X ¥ 4F
AR AR (DA D) Z 28 OB 4T BA K& B
WAL K > A B AR AT 4 %5 14568 % € © Winner
Ciry BB A5 2 328 7 40 ] A2 5 A 7 7 v W 4K
MEO2AZENCHE Z ¥ ([HKMKEWE]D X
AL FLRE L BE B B AT B 155 2 % (W 47
BB o B E RO Z AR AR
T T AT 2 B W 3 4 B b oL B R AN
B P K —FRLE N T ANHZEES
185,000,000% JG % 115,750,000% JG  #% % W i
I O WO I R B R 5 o A B RE
WBEAAFAPR _FZLELAZ+—HEEZ
9 o N PR o



Pokfulam Properties comprise a whole block of residential
building consisting of 12 units and is currently vacant. We
will renovatefre-develop the property for maximum income.
On the other hand, Waterloo Road Properties has been
occupied by the Group as its head office.

We believe that the acquisitions of Pokfulam Properties and
Waterloo Properties have provided a prime opportunity for the
Group to strengthen its property portfolio with high quality

assets.

In May 2007, we completed the disposal of the properties
at No. 36 Jardine’s Bazaar, Causeway Bay for a price of
HK$113,000,000. As a result of this disposal, the Group has
realised cash proceeds of around HK$49 million after payment
of the related mortgage loan, commission and legal and
professional fees, which has resulted in a positive effect on the

Group’s gearing position.

Our investment properties were valued at an aggregate value
of HK$613,104,000 as of 31 March 2008 by independent
professional valuers. As a result of the valuation, we recorded

a gain of approximately HK$14,839,000.

Property Development

Though our application for an order under the Land
(Compulsory Sales for Redevelopment) Ordinance to sell all
the undivided shares in the lots at Nos. 125 & 127 Tung Choi
Street, Mongkok for redevelopment purposes was dismissed by
the Lands Tribunal last year, we submitted a fresh application
again and successfully obtained the order on 11 July 2008.
According to the court order, a public auction will be held to
sell all the undivided shares of the lots at Nos.125 &127 Tung
Choi Street as a whole.

The development project of the land in Tai Po, which has
a site area of about 1,000 m? and has a view of the Tolo
Harbour, is progressing. We are developing a two-storey luxury
residential house of a total floor area of about 400 m?, with
spacious gardens and a swimming pool. Foundation works
have been completed. The building plans were submitted to
Buildings Department and have been approved. Construction
work has commenced in June 2008 and is expected to
complete in the year of 2009.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BN 28y

WRREYE B2 BEEET > FETAHIL
i B > 2 0 AL BE W 22 o A 4R i o EOB
g/ BB REWE > LFRURFHKRA - 5
— 5 TG > A5 AN R AT 2 08 W 3 AR A A
Hg o

AL MG > MOl H kAR B E R EITZEY
S A B T B A RLMK > DGR v L 4 3

e

WFRCEAH - AL 58 5 8 AL 8
W30 2 W - T B R 1L 13T -
HR B TE B s A AT B R m Rk A
RSB HEE %  REHCR T EZY
£ BB 4 £49,000,0009 70 > ¥ AC4E ] 2 & A
A R D00 A A0 T T B o

R-BRNE=ZH=1+—H  KEFEREWE
AR S B S Al A I RE Al 2 281 £5613,104,000
Wt o MR EATMHME - AEE BB WRL
14,839,000% JC ©

AR AR AL b (2 TR 5% i iR
B ) k) A 4 5 I A 8 3R A 125 J 1279%
A7 B B B B AR o L > DL BE R B R
1Y - 7 A B[] Y A G B o AR AT N
ACHE O AR R SRR\
A+ H > R WAHAL - B EHL >
RS RA2TIR A A o F Ay Bz He Bt 8
H 2 B4 B A o

A 45 1 A RO BEA — R b B T RE A
1,000°F J5 oK » ¥ B A7 nk 3B v i 5t > OB R EH#
TEHEAT o A A [ B OF 55 R — P W R Y BE 2 4R
LR > M R A L #1400 05 ok 3 BE A R TR
14 A6 T B — MR i kit o M TRR AR SE K o B
ERMUCEREFE WO EASHE - BE T
BORZFF)ENARM BHTR 2%
JUEESE R, ©
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
B E: 8y

PROSPECT

Going through sluggish development for the past few years,
the scenario for the construction industry in Hong Kong is
likely to change. The HKSAR Chief Executive has pledged
in his 2007 annual policy address to promote economic
development by pushing ahead with large-scale infrastructure
projects. Therefore, it is expected more construction work
opportunities will arise in the public sector and we will

continue our efforts to secure more projects.

However, Hong Kong has seen consumer prices climbing
ever over the past few months. The construction industry is
expected to face more challenges from the upward pressures
on staff costs and prices of imported materials including
wood, iron and steel, driven by rising oil prices and the
continuing appreciation of Renminbi against US dollars. To
cope with these challenges, we will formulate policies and
implement measures to contain costs in order to maintain our

profitability.

As regards the property market in Hong Kong, the Directors
hold positive views despite the recent volatility in the stock
market. It is expected the property market will maintain its
steady growth, underpinned by the robust economy and the
low level of interest rates. The Group will continue to look
for opportunities in the property market.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Directors, I would like to extend our
gratitude and sincere appreciation to all management and staff
members of the Group for their hard work and dedication and
all the shareholders of the Company for their support.

On behalf of the Board

Ngai Chun Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 July 2008
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

E3 P
Address Use
ik H %

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AT 31 MARCH 2008
AEMRZFZNEZA =S HRANYE

12

Properties in Hong Kong

REEZWE
Shop Nos. G29A2, G28, G65, G64A and Shops
G64B, G27A and G27B, G26A and G26B )i

on Ground Floor of Portion B,

Argyle Centre, Phase 1, No. 688 Nathan Road,
No. 65 Argyle Street,

Mongkok, Kowloon

JUTHE HE #4553 2 B1655% » i BB 6885 »

WE A o — BB L FG29A2 ~ G28 »

G65 ~ G64A ~ G64B ~ G27A ~ G271B ~

G26A K G26B%E &
Shop Nos. 5 and 6 and Storeroom 3, Shops
1st Floor, Fou Wah Centre, No. 210 Castle Peak Road, i

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

R A A2 1098 5 3 b o

1HES TR 655 &l 2R 395 Hr iy =

Nos. 92A-C, Pokfulam Road, Hong Kong Residential
T s MR AR B 92 A E92C 5% g
No. 155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Hong Kong Office
BHWIEE ST 2 155% /A

Percentage held

Tenure by the Group

AREERAEN

A7 1) Ak

Long lease 100%

Medium term 100%
lease
FHIFLA

Medium term 100%
lease
IR A

Medium term 100%
lease
A A



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

Address Use
s hk M %

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AT 31 MARCH 2008 (continued)
AR ZZNAEZA =T B RA MY E (B

1. Properties in Hong Kong (continued)

A2 W3 ()

5. Duplex Flat B on 12th and 13th Floors of Residential
Block 16 and Car Parking Space No. 36 e
on Upper Carpark Floor,

Villa Rhapsody, Symphony Bay,

No. 533 Sai Sha Road, Ma On Shan, Shatin,
New Territories

BV R 1L v v B 533 5% BRI

LB R 1612 X 1 3ME A X BB

b B 15 B B3 6% VT B AL

6. Garden Suite No. 37B of House 37 and Car Parking Residential
Space No. 78 on Platform A of Forest Hill, e
No. 31 Lo Fai Road, Tai Po, New Territories
T 5 K B K 3 1 90K e L T3 7
3TRBAE EE K AT & 78950 HL AL

7. Flat E, 17th Floor, Tower 2, Residential
The Greenwood (Phase 1), B
Laguna Verde, No. 8 Laguna Verde Ave,

Hung Hom, Kowloon

JUTE A1 1) 16 4% T S % i 4 5
RRBEHE (S5 19]) 5528 1 THEE R

8. Car Parking Space Nos. 54 and 56 on Ground Floor, Car park
Oxford Court, Nos. 24-26 Braemar Hill Road, YA HAL

North Point, Hong Kong
AL A 25 1B 24-26 9% AR
T 545% B 5655 10 B AL

Tenure

459

Medium term

lease

AL A

Medium term

lease

SRR A

Medium term

lease

SRR A

Long lease

BT

Percentage held
by the Group

ACHE B £y A0
Hirke

100%

100%

100%

100%

13
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
e

Address

b bt

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AT 31 MARCH 2008 (continued)
AREER -FZFZNAE=ZH =1 HRAWHE (B

10.

II.

Properties in Hong Kong (continued)

REEZY R (8)

Unit B including carport (s) and the garden,
Riverain Bayside,

No. 3985 Tai Po Road Yuen Chau Tsai,

Tai Po, New Territories

0 Rl 2 i o0 I AT BE3985 5%

i A S B B A 2 3 Ao e At

No. 9 Belfran Road, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
JUBE AT 3¢ H B 2R 35 0%

Property in the People’s Republic of China
UE INPLY ] P /E

Block M-K39, Sunshine Holiday Villas
Yingchengzi Village, Badaling Town
Yangqing Country, Beijing

People’s Republic of China

LA YNERPE ] T

A3 I B R

J\IE SR BB W T A

5 6 A H i BEM-K39

Use

i

Residential

e

Residential
it

Residential
et

Percentage held

Tenure by the Group

AR AW

A3 o

Medium term 100%
lease
U AL 4

Long lease 100%

N/A, as the 100%

real estate title
certificate has yet
to be obtained
A -

E A3 A 17
AT 5



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

Address Use
s hk M %
PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AT 31 MARCH 2008 (continued)
AR ZZNAEZA =T B RA MY E (B

III. Properties for/under development in Hong Kong

RAEEAERRR b2k

1. Ground, 1st to 5th Floors and the roof Shops/
of Nos. 123-125 Tung Choi Street, Commercial
Ist Floor and portion of landing on Ground Floor, L
2nd to 5th Floors of No. 127 Tung Choi Street, [LES

Mongkok, Kowloon

(The Remaining Portion of Kowloon Inland

Lot Nos. 1702 and 1703 and 5/6th shares of

and in the Remaining Portion of

Kowloon Inland Lot No. 1704)

Saleable area: 1,179.95 m?

Stage of development: Working on consolidation
of sites

JUHE WE A 38 3 H123-1255%

WH- —HEEIHEERE

B2 MR

G > MR

(JUTE M 3 B 551702 % 1703 5% 5 B &

JUHE P 3 B 58 1704 9% ik B 55 B AR o4y )

TRWR : #91,179.95F 5k

BRME: EEGHE

2. Tai Po Town Lot No. 180, Tai Po Kau, Residential
Tai Po, New Territories e
Site area: 1,000 m?
Stage of completion: Building plan approved

and construction work
has commenced
Expected completion date: End of 2009
TR R 3 v R i b B SR 1805

i G R 1,000°F J5 %
56 TREE ¢ 4 R B L o
B TR

Rt TR . Z“FFAEER

Tenure

459

Long lease

R

Medium term
lease

LA

BT

Percentage held
by the Group

A 4R 1 5 A i
"k

100%

100%

15
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

At 31 March 2008, the gross and outstanding values of
the Group’s substantial contracts on hand amounted to
approximately HK$3,977 million and HK$1,988 million

respectively. Details of these substantial contracts are set out

AT A HBER

RERFNFE=ZA=Z+—H> KEHZEX
FHAHBMERR R G EEY N R
3,977,000,000%% 7€ & 1,988,000,000%% JC © I %5 H
RTFHEHANZFHMERBIIMT

below:
Projects Approximate contract value
HH &0 &Y B
HK$ million
F T
Road and Drainage Works, Waterworks and Slope Works
RO LR KR TR A TR
Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains Stage 1 Phase 2 — Mains on Hong Kong Islands 223
B RAE KA Rl SR LR B AR 20 — A v R KA AR
Roadwork (R1, Portion of R2 & R6A) Direct Contract for 37
Proposed Residential Development (Package One) at
T.K.O.T.L. No. 70, Area 86, Site F, Tseung Kwan O
1% WAL A [ 58 8.6 I 5 B i BB 5 70 5)% e A B B Rt
(JEH—) W i TR (R1 - BBAR2KROA) A A
Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 2 — Mains in Tuen Wan 45
B RAE KA w2 B — KA TR
Improvement to Hong Kong Central mid level and high level areas 235
water supply — Remaining Works, Construction of Service Reservoirs,
Pumping Stations and Associated Main Laying
W 5 b 2 Ll R DA b T B K B R ) — R T AR — B K e A i K o B R B KA R
Trenching Works for Reinstatement of Tin Wan — Kennedy Road 275KV Circuits 6

and for Connection of Cyberport — Marsh Road
275KV Circuits at Kai Lung Wan Reservoir Road

S L U P R M 275 T IR TR B SO 9 S

275 R 45 58 % LR AR L TR

17
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND
LW SR g 0] R

Projects Approximate contract value
¥H 5 &R BT
HK$ million

H T

Building Construction

Carcass Work Contract for the Proposed Residential Development (Package One) 737
at TK.O.T.L. No. 70, Area 86, Site F, Tsueng Kwan O

A% S JLE b [ 57 8 6 5t TR T M B SR 7OSR MY R AR BRI E GBI B M LEB R TRAH

Main Contract for the Construction of a Residential Development at 418
T.C.T.L. No. 4, Tung Chung Station Development Package 2, Phase 4
B R A B AR P R T B R4 B R R RS X

Interior Fitting-out Works Direct Contract for Proposed Residential Development 45
at Lot No. 2081 in D.D. 109, Kam Tin, Yuen Long
JC B8 H SR 1094 M B AR 208 IR Mt B R IEHE WA R R TREZGH

External Works for Podium and Landscape Area for 46
Proposed Residential Development (Package One) at T.K.O.T.L. No. 70,
Area 86, Site F, Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

T A1 B P A [ 5 8 6 [ A R LT b B SR 70SR Y R AR BB R H
CGEIRB) 27 & KAk ez T2

Construction of a Primary School at Development Near Choi Wan Road 96

and Jordan Valley, Kwun Tong
BB ERAREEMEZ BRI E g2

Improvement to Kowloon Park Swimming Pool and Hong Kong Stadium 170

JUTE 2 [ e kit B 7 o8 KRB Y 24035 TR

Improvement to Hong Kong Colisem 158
A RS TR

Improvement to Queen Elizabeth Stadium 104
PR E S TR

Construction of Ngau Chi Wan Recreation Ground at Wong Tai Sin 154
L A 2 e ¥ AR L

Landscape Features for the Proposed Hotel and Service Apartment at 4

Kwai Chung Town Lot 467, 33 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung
ZE I AR A 33 5% 28T 7 B 467 % R O B s A 2 R AR



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND
AT A HBER

Projects Approximate contract value
¥ H o HIBE A B
HK$ million

A 4 # T

Building Maintenance

B AR 1%

Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands 229
and Other Properties for which the Architectural Services Department is Responsible
(Designated Area: Kwun Tong, Mongkok and Yaumatei)

REAE O i R R R R R E A Y
(F5 5 o I < B ~ WE A4 B Joe )

Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands 218
and Other Properties for which the Architectural Services Department is Responsible
(Designated Area: Shamshuipo, Tsuen Wan and Kwai Tsing)

HESEE U g~ R RS L REAYEZ EHEH
(Fe @bl KIS ~ 2R ET)

Term Contract for Design and Construction of Minor Works to Government and 683
Subvented Properties for which the Architectural Services Department is
Responsible at Hong Kong, Kowloon, New Territories and Outlying Islands
ST RAT B B - JUHE ~ BT SR B A B % il B
AN A TR E WA 4

External Wall Repair Works to the Residential Towers of Tierra Verde, Tsing Yi 49
A B R B AR s M i A A s TR

Term Contract for the Conversion of Aqua Privies into
Flushing Toilets for which the Architectural Services Department is Responsible 214

R R A A 2 ok P 2 A A

Concrete Repairs and Painting Protection Works for Block 16 to Block 51 at Sha Tau Kok Chuen 11
VOB A SR 6P 25 5 1 8 2 TR B - M5 Ko 4 A i AR

Building Repairs and Maintenance Term Contract 2007/2010 for The Hong Kong Polytechnic University 20
A v B TR B A 08 I AR 2 A 492007/20104F
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

BoAm oA R A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND
K F B HI B

Projects Approximate contract value
¥ H o # B2 R
HK$ million

i #o0

Utilities Civil Engineering Works

A EARTH

Civil Engineering Works Term Contract No. CWT E/30/2008 for PCCW 75
B AR LA TR ES A A RICWT E/30/2008

Outstanding Contract Value
By project category
RS R U

HIHH

Road, Drainage, Waterworks and Slope
T RO AR R AR R T

Ugtilities Civil Engineering
A EARTHE

Building Maintenance

SRS

Building Construction

M 5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Our construction and engineering works are principally
carried out by the Company’s two major subsidiaries,
Able Engineering Company Limited (“Able”) and Excel
Engineering Company Limited (“Excel”).

Able Engineering Company Limited
Substantial contracts completed by Able during the year

under review included:

. Design and build of a footbridge for Rhine Garden,
Sham Tseng, N.T.

. Fitting-out works for the proposed hotel and serviced
apartment at 33 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung
. Fitting-out works for clubhouse, main entrance lobby

and lift car for the proposed residential development at
Nos. 880-886 King’s Road, Hong Kong

. Fitting-out works for clubhouse, Tiu Ken Leng Station
Development at TKOTL No. 73, Area 73B, Tseung
Kwan O

. Hospital Authority Term Contract for Minor Works
2005

During the year under review, Able was awarded the following
substantial contract with an aggregate contract value of
approximately HK$942 million:

. External works for podium and landscape area for
proposed residential development (Package One) at
TKOTL No. 70, Area 86, Site F, Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

. Construction of a primary school at development near
Choi Wan Road and Jordan Valley, Kwun Tong
. Improvement to Kowloon Park Swimming Pool and

Hong Kong Stadium

. Improvement to Hong Kong Colisem
. Improvement to Queen Elizabeth Stadium
. Construction of Ngau Chi Wan Recreation Ground at

Wong Tai Sin, Kowloon

. Landscape features for the proposed hotel and service
apartment at Kwai Chung Town Lot 467, 33 Wo Yi
Hop Road, Kwai Chung

. Term Contract for the Conversion of Aqua Privies into
Flushing Toilets for which the Architectural Services
Department is Responsible

B m g

ALEPEER TRAGHEEHARLNF ZWH
EFM AR LR TRARA R (TRR]) K
i TRA AT (MMak]) #1T -

LR TEARA A
T I AR BE A > ZARSEIRZ R A # B4

. H W G A R A R AT AR

i
. ST AR A 33T B R % K
TIRETH

. I B ES80-886 Bt ik B B R IE H
BB ~ B R B R A R TR

. 1S L AL 57 3 B ik 1 UL T B 5 73 0% A
A ol B B B TR AR

. T e A LR /N R TR A ) 40200548

R BEAEREN > XRRATHERGH > TR
48 (5 #7942,000,000% 7T :

. T 5 of% B BLE M [ 5 8.6 [k 1% B LT B SR
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ENE AN N
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Subsequent to the balance sheet date and up to the date
of this report, Able was awarded the following substantial
contract with an aggregate value of HK$102 million:

. Fitting-out works for podium of the proposed residential
development (Package One) at TKOTL No.70, Area
86, Site F, Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

. Replumping Works for Tsz Lok Estate

Excel Engineering Company Limited
Substantial contracts completed by Excel during the year

under review included:

. Proposed elevated walkway linking The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University to the existing footbridge over
Cross Harbour Tunnel Tool Plaza

. The construction of permanent public transport
terminus at Tin Yan Road for the proposed G.I.C./
public carpark and residential development at Tin Shui
Wai Lot No. 24, Area 33, N.T.

J Building, repairs and maintenance term contract
2005/2008, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

o Repair works to A/C hoods and installation of A/C
drain pipes to external walls of Lotus Tower 1 to 4,
Kwun Tong Garden Estate

. Civil Engineering Works Term Contract No. CWT
E/29/2005 for PCCW

. Outline Agreement No. 4600002385 for distribution
cable trenching and laying works in the CLP Power,
North Region for CLP Power Hong Kong Ltd.

BB kw53 e

&S R KB R AR H O Rk > R
THE KA > TR A102,000,000% 7€ :

. T 1% B LA [ 5 86 Ik 1% FE LT B SR
O A T BRI H CGRIRB) Z°F
H L3 T

. RYLTR 2 KA R T

ik TRARA
BRI > ISR R A A B

. R L A i B KR 3 I O Wk B
35 bW B AT N RAR AR 2247 N

. H W SR OK T Mo Be SR 2495 5533 Ik Y HhE
G.L.C./ A W5 B R AR B 88 A it K
R e L TR A O 6 32 R B A

J HWH T REMFHERREENGH
2005/20084F

J B30 A6 B K B R 2T 408 AN AR
R B B & 25 v M 2 7K Wk

. ol R R TR A A B SECWT

E/29/2005
. hEEE A BRA WAL R A TR (&
)4 554600002385)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During year under review, Excel was awarded the following
substantial contracts with an aggregate contract value of

approximately HK$392 million:

. Civil Engineering Works Term Contract No. CWT
E/30/2008 for PCCW

. Concrete repairs and painting protection works for
Block 16 to Block 51 at Sha Tau Kok Chuen

J Building repairs and maintenance term contract
2007/2010 for The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

. Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage
2 — Mains in Tuen Wan

. Improvement to Hong Kong Central mid level and

high level areas water supply — remaining works,
construction of service reservoirs, pumping stations and
associated main laying

. Trenching Works for Reinstatement of Tin Wan —
Kennedy Road 275KV Circuits and for Connection of
Cyberport — Marsh Road 275KV Circuits at Kai Lung
Wan Reservoir Road

Property investment

For the year under review, the Group recorded a gross rental
income of approximately HK$13,314,000, down 28% from
HK$18,545,000 for the previous year. The decrease was
primarily caused by the disposal of No. 36 Jardine’s Bazaar.

P EEAEEN > BB A THERGH » TR
#E(H #7392,000,000% ¢ :

. BMBAR LR THEEMEGHAFBECYT
E/30/2008

. W E A SR 16 B S 1 2 R B A 1B
Ty o AR TR

. FWHTAREMTREERAREZHEGH
2007/20104F

. B R s B K SR 2R B — T KA
T8

. 5 05 T [ L e DA b [ B K el —
i F AR — B G K R A il K S R AH TR
KA Bk

. S K T R R M 275 TR A
B R B R S 275 TR
L AR DT TR

Wy 3% B

PEBEAAEEN  AEHHGAEMESEBRARD
13,314,000% JC » & 2% 4 218,545,000% 76 T %
28% ° HAFL & WA WA TG 32 5 i B A A
365ERTEL -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2008, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to HK$83,802,000 (excluding pledged deposits
of HK$6,035,000), representing an increase by 69% from
2007 of HK$49,550,000 (excluding pledged deposits of
HK$8,445,000). Current ratio, measured as total current assets
divided by total current liabilities, was 1.3 as of 31 March
2008, as compared to 2007 of 1.0.

Meanwhile, bank overdrafts and loans at 31 March 2008
increased by 24% to approximately HK$692,562,000, as
compared to 2007 of HK$560,544,000. At 31 March 2008,
the Group’s net gearing was 122% (2007: 163%), measured as
total bank borrowings less pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, divided by total shareholders’ equity.

At 31 March 2008, the Group’s bank borrowings are all
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Whilst the Group’s
borrowings are principally on a floating rate basis, in order to
mitigate the risk of interest rate upward trends, we entered

into interest rate swaps with a bank for an aggregate notional
amount of HK$150 million.

Interest expenses increased slightly by 9% to HK$33,160,000
for the year under review (2007: HK$30,504,000). No interest
was capitalised during the year under review (2007: nil)

Our banking facilities, comprising primarily bank loans and
overdrafts, amounted to approximately HK$1,320 million
at 31 March 2008 (2007: HK$887 million), of which
approximately HK$498 million (2007: HK$156 million) was

unutilised.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2008, the Group had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees in respect of performance bonds in
favour of contract customers amounting to HK$133,717,000
(2007: HK$129,125,000). In addition, at 31 March 2008, the
Company had contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees
given to banks against the facilities granted to subsidiaries of
the Company utilised to the extent of approximately HK$822
million (2007: HK$602 million).

BB kw53 e

Y %5 ol g

4 B W R R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CENTE ) i

Charges on Assets

At 31 March 2008, bank balance and fixed deposits of
approximately HK$6,035,000 (2007: HK$8,445,000),
investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$610,300,000 (2007: HK$525,810,000), buildings and
prepaid land lease payments with aggregate carrying values
of approximately HK$128,025,000 (2007: HK$13,846,000),
properties held for development of HK$115,500,000
(2007: HK$115,586,000) and property held for sale of
HK$44,833,000 (2007: HK$44,833,000) were pledged in
favour of certain banks to secure the banking facilities granted
by those banks to the Group. In addition, accounts receivable
of certain construction contracts of the Group were assigned
in favour of certain banks to secure the banking facilities at

31 March 2008.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 March 2008 the Group employed 398 full-time staff
in Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its staff based on
their performance and work experience and the prevailing
market rates. Staff benefits include mandatory provident fund,

medical insurance and training programmes.

The Company also maintains a share option scheme. The
purposes of the share option scheme are to provide incentives
for the full-time employees and executives, to recognise their
contributions to the growth of the Group and to provide
more flexibility for the Group in formulating its remuneration
policy.

On 7 December 2006, the Company granted options to
various employees to subscribe for an aggregate of 6,900,000
shares of the Company. The vesting period of these options
is 7 December 2006 to 6 June 2007. These options can be
exercised within 5 years from 7 June 2007 through 6 June
2012 at a subscription price of HK$0.165.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (B#RHESEH), aged 45, is the
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Ngai has extensive experience
in the construction industry. He is responsible for the
management of the Board and the strategic planning of
the Group. Mr. Ngai and Mr. Yau, Deputy Chairman of the
Company, are brothers-in-law.

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai (J#EIHEiSEAE), aged 42, is the Deputy
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Yau graduated with First Class Honours Degree in Civil
Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and obtained a
Master of Science Degree with Distinction in Structural Steel
Design from the University of London and a Diploma of the
Imperial College of the United Kingdom. He is a Chartered
Engineer and a corporate member of the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the Institution of Structural Engineers and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, a Registered Professional
Engineer (Civil & Structural) and a Registered Structural
Engineer. Mr. Yau is responsible for formulating the policy
and overall development and the day-to-day management and
administration of the Group’s operations. Mr. Yau and Mr.
Ngai, Chairman of the Company, are brothers-in-law.

Mr. LI Chi Pong (Z=VR#SE4:), aged 51, is an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible for estimation,
contract managements, subcontracting and procurement of
Excel Engineering Company Limited. He graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic with a Higher Diploma in
Civil Engineering in 1979. He has over 25 years’ extensive
experience in various public and private construction
works. He is the Authorised Signatory for foundation, site
formation works and general building contractor of Buildings
Department. Mr. Li is a Council Member of the Hong Kong
Construction Association.

Mr. MAK Hon Kuen Peter (ZEMES ), aged 31, was
appointed an Executive Director of the Company on 1 April
2008. Mr. Mak has over 8 years’ experience in investment
management. Previously, he has held various positions with
investment banks and hedge fund, including Merrill Lynch,
Credit Suisse, DKR Oasis. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
commerce, with dean’s honour, from The University of British
Columbia, Canada. He is principally responsible for capital
finance and investor relations matters of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

o g0 B B4 B e R

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SHEK Yu Ming Joseph (fiFiBIJE4), aged 63, is a
Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Shek holds a
Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering from the University
of Hong Kong. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers, a Fellow of the Institution of Civil Engineers,
an Authorised Person (Engineer) and a Registered Structural
Engineer. He has over 20 years experience in the executive
role in construction companies and has completed a large
number of contracts for the Hong Kong Government and
the private sector. Mr. Shek is a member of the Appeal
Tribunal (Buildings Ordinance Chapter 123), a member of
the Registered Contractors’ Disciplinary Board (2002-2008),
a member of Review Panel under the Land (Miscellaneous
Provisions) (Amendment) Ordinance, a member of the
Planning Sub-Committee of the Land and Building Advisory
Committee of the Development Bureau; a Council Member
(1997-2008) and Chairman of Environmental Committee
(1995-2003) of the Hong Kong Construction Association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor KO Jan Ming (WEWHEIZ), aged 65, is an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. He
is the Vice President and the Chair Professor of Structural
Engineering of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Professor Ko holds a Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering
and a Doctorate Degree in Structural Engineering from
the University of Hong Kong. He is a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers, the Institution of Structural
Engineers of United Kingdom and the American Society
of Civil Engineers. Professor Ko was Chairman of the
Accreditation Board (2001-2006) of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, its representative on the Engineering
Education and Training Committee of the Federation of
Engineering Institutions of Southeast Asia and the Pacific,
and Chairman of Hong Kong Economic Cooperation
(APEC) and Engineering Mobility Forum (EMF) Monitoring
Committees (2006-2009). He is a Governing Council Member
of Construction Industry Institute (Hong Kong) and a
Council Member of The Hong Kong Institution of Science
(2002-2006). He was the President of The Hong Kong
Society of Theoretical and Applied Mechanics (1999/2000)
and the President of The Hong Kong Association for
the Advancement of Science and Technology (2000/01).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Professor Ko is also a Panel Member of the Appeal Tribunal
in Buildings of the HKSAR (1997-2004), a Member of
Construction Industry Council (2007-2010), and the Advisor
of the Beijing-Hong Kong Academic Exchange Centre.
Professor Ko is a Guest Professor of the Southeast University,
Beijing Polytechnic University, Zhejiang University, Central
South University and Hohai University, PRC, and an
Advisory Professor of the Beijing University of Aeronautics
& Astronautics, PRC. He is also a Chair Professor, National
Chung Hsing University, Taiwan (2006-2009). He is a Co-
chairman of the Scientific Committee of the Joint Research
Laboratory on Earth Observation (2005-2008), and a Member
of the Civil Engineering Advisory Committee of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology (2002-2007).
Professor Ko is the Editor-in-Chief of an International
Journal — Advances in Structural Engineering (1997-2003),
Editor-in-Chief (Asia-Pacific), International Journal — Smart
Structures and Systems, the Senior Consultant of the Editorial
Board of the Journal of Spatial Structures, a member of the
Editorial Boards of the Journal of Engineering Mechanics,
Journal of Earthquake and Engineering Vibration and Journal
of Hazards Prevention and Mitigation Engineering. He
was the President of Asian-Pacific Network of Centres for
Earthquake Engineering (2005-2007), a Council Member of
the International Society for Structural Health Monitoring of
Intelligent Infrastructures, and a Management Board Member
of the Asian-Pacific Network of Centres for Research in
Smart Structures Technology. He was the Vice President of
the Board of Directors of Structural Engineers World Congress
2002, the Chairman of the International Conference on
Advances in Building Technology (2002), the Co-Chair
of the International Conference on Advances and New
Challenges in Earthquake Engineering Research (2002), and
the Annual International Symposium on Smart Structures
and Materials (2003 to 2005). Professor Ko’s research interests
are Structural Dynamics, Vibration Monitoring & Control,
System Identification, and Damage Detection.
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Mr. IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP (ZERE ), aged 56, is an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Ip is the Vice-chairman of Democratic Alliance for the
Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong (DAB), Deputy to the
10th National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of
China. He is a member of Standing Committee on Disciplined
Services Salaries and Conditions of Services, a member of
Transport Advisory Committee, Non-executive directors of
Urban Renewal Authority Board. Mr IP was a member of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong (1995-1997), a member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong, SAR (2000-2004), a
member of the Central & Western District Council (1991-
2003).

Mr. FUNG Pui Cheung Eugene (H351E564), aged 59, is
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Fung is a Certified Public Accountant, a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of both The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales and The Certified General Accountants’
Association of Canada. He holds a Master of Arts Degree from
Antioch University of USA. Presently, Mr. Fung is a director
of NCN CPA Limited as well as practicing as a sole proprietor
in the name of P. C. Fung & Company, Certified Public
Accountants. Previously, he served in senior and managerial
positions in large local and international accounting firms.
In addition, Mr. Fung is currently an Honorary Associate of
Baptist University, School of Business, a standing committee
member of The Hong Kong Chinese Importers’” & Exporters’
Association, a Standing Committee member of Democratic
Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong and
a Standing Committee member of the Jiangxi Provincial
Opverseas Liaison Association. Mr. Fung was also appointed a
member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel (4% E#t
KatZ B B), under the Financial Reporting Council (Bf
BMEHJT) and a member of the IRD Users Committee (Ft#s
R ARHEREZETZELR)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. POON Yan Min (¥ MG 4E), aged 46, is a Director
of Excel Engineering Company Limited. Mr. Poon holds a
Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering from University of
Hong Kong and a Master Degree in Engineering Management
from City University of Hong Kong. He is a corporate
member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a
Registered Professional Engineer (Civil). He has over 20
years’ experience in the construction of road and drainage,
site formation, waterworks and building works including 10
years’ experience in tunnel and railway works in Mass Transit
Railway Corporation. He is responsible for the engineering
techniques, implementation of works and the overall
management of contracts. He is the Engineer Supervisor of
the HKIE Scheme A Training for Graduate Engineers and the
head of Design Department responsible for the design works of
the graduate engineers.

Mr. YAM Kui Hung (fEEE#84:), aged 49, is a Director of
Able Engineering Company Limited, a major subsidiary of the
Company. He graduated with a Higher Certificate in Building
Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and a Postgraduate
Diploma in Construction Management from the Construction
Industry Training Authority. He is a corporate member of the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, a Registered Professional
Engineer (Building) and has over 27 years’ experience in the
construction field. He is responsible for management and

operations of building projects.

Mr. HO Chi Ming Wilson (ffJi5BIJE4), aged 46, is the
Assistant General Manager of Able Engineering Company
Limited. Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor Degree in Construction
Management and Economic from the Curtin University of
Technology, a National Diploma in Building Studies from
the Business & Technician Education Council and a Higher
Certificate in Building Studies and Proficiency Certificate
in Industrial Safety from the Hong Kong Polytechnic. He is
a corporate member of the Chartered Institute of Building,
has registered as an Authorized Signatory from the Buildings
Department and has over 25 years’ experience in the project
management in the construction field and a wide background
of working experience in residential, commercial and
institutional developments. He is responsible for providing
full range of building project management and contract

administration works of contracts.
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Mr. KWOK Kwok Yuen (FRBUHJEH:), aged 50, is the Safety,
Health & Environmental Manager of Able Engineering
Company Limited. Mr. Kwok holds an Honours Degree in
Building Surveying from Leicester Polytechnic of United
Kingdom, a Postgraduate Diploma in Construction Law and
Arbitration from the University of Hong Kong (SPACE)
and a Safety Officer Certificate from Construction Industry
Training Authority. He is Corporate Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (Building Surveying Division), a
Corporate Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
(Property and Facility Management Division), a Corporate
Member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors,
a Registered Professional Surveyor (Building Surveying),
a Qualified Mainland Consultant Engineer of The China
Association of Engineering Consultants, a Member of
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and a Listed Arbitrator
of Hong Kong Institute of Architects and The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors. He has over 28 years’ experience in
the construction industry. He is responsible for the review,
maintenance and implementation of Company Safety
Management System. He is also responsible for providing full
range of building project planning, management and contract

administration works of contracts.

Mr. NG Kai Chow (JREMIJEH:), aged 40, is the Contract
Manager of Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. Ng
holds a Post-graduated Diploma in Construction Law &
Arbitration and a Diploma in Construction (CEM) in the
College of Estate Management. He is an Incorporate Member
of the Chartered of Building, a Member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators and Authorized Signatory from
Buildings Department. He also has about 23 years’ experience
in construction field and working in different positions in
the construction industry. He is responsible for providing
full range of building project management and contract

administration works of contracts.
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Mr. KAN Kwok Kit (féjB#E5%64), aged 45, is the Contract
Manager of Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. Kan
graduated with Master Degree of Science in Engineering
Business Management and is a Chartered Engineer. He is a
Branch Committee of the Institute of Plumbing & Heating
Engineering and a member of the Guangzhou Haizhu District
Standing Committee of The CPPCC National. He has over
20 years’ experience in Construction Industry and Building
Services Engineering. He is responsible for tendering,
providing full range of building project management and
contract administration works of contracts. He is also the
Head of the Building Services Department that responsible
for all matters relating to Building Services/Electrical &
Mechanical provisions for all projects.

Ms. PANG Fung Ming (ZBMS/NH), aged 38, is the
Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary of the
Company. Ms. Pang is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. She holds a
Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. WONG Kei Leung (¥EIERMHA), aged 57, is the
Accounting Manager of the Group and the chief accountant
of Able Engineering Company Limited. He has over 30
years’ accounting experience. He holds a Bachelor Degree in

Commercial Science and Business Administration from Chu

Hai College.
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The Group recognises the importance in maintaining high
standards of corporate governance and believes that good
corporate governance is fundamental to enhancing the
confidence of the investors and minimising our exposure to

risks.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Before 1 April 2008, the Board had been made up of seven
Directors. Upon the appointment of an additional Executive
Director on 1 April 2008, the Board is now composed of
eight Directors, including four Executive Directors, one Non-
executive Director and three Independent Non-executive

Directors.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the Group’s business. All Directors
have separate and independent access to the advice and
services of the senior management and the company secretary
with a view to ensuring that board procedures, and all

applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for
a fixed specific term. The Company confirmed that it
has received from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and they are
considered to be independent.
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The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board
include those relating to:

o the strategic plans and directions, and financial
objectives of the Group;

° monitoring the performance of the management;

o implementing and monitoring an effective framework

of internal controls and risk management;

° ensuring that the Company has good corporate
governance and is in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

Responsibilities over day-to-day operations are delegated to
management under the leadership of Executive Directors.

The Board meets regularly to review the overall strategy and
to monitor the operation as well as the financial performance
of the Group. For all of the Board meetings, proper and
sufficient notices, adequate information including agenda
and accompanying board papers are supplied and sent to all

Directors in reasonable time.

Directors’ Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings for Year

2007/08
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Directors Meetings attended / held
Fie BT Z ik
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee
WHH HMERS EBEHRA
Executive Directors AT &g
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung BRI e 5 A 5/5
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai e 1R A S A 5/5 1/1
Mr. Li Chi Pong R FB e A 5/5
Non-executive Director PTG
Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph Fap i 5/5
Independent Non-Executive Directors M JE #4535
Professor Ko Jan Ming TR I B 5/5 1/1 2/2
Mr. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP B ] i S A
(HEFRE - KPA+) 4/5 0/1 2/2
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, Eugene 5 8 v g AR 5/5 1/1 2/2
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APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Company’s existing bye-laws, all directors
(including those appointed for a specific term, chairman and
managing director) are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at each annual general meeting at least once every
three years. In addition, directors appointed during the year
as an addition to the Board or to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board are subject to retirement and election by shareholders

at the first general meeting following their appointment.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEQO)
of the Company are separately performed by Mr. Ngai Chun
Hung and Mr. Yau Kwok Fai respectively. Mr. Ngai Chun
Hung and Mr. Yau Kwok Fai are brothers-in-law.

This segregation ensures a clear division of the Chairman’s
responsibilities for the management of the Board and the
CEQO’s responsibilities for the day-to-day management of the
Company’s business.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the
Board, and ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at board meetings and that Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The Chairman has an additional or casting vote in

the event of an equality of votes on any matter to be decided

by the Board.

The CEO is appointed by the Board and is responsible for
providing leadership for the management, implementing and
reporting to the Board on the Group’s strategy, overseeing the
day-to-day operations of the Group and providing all such
information to the Board as is necessary to enable the Board
to monitor the performance of the management.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee was established on 8
September 2000 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee’s

terms of reference are available on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee is now made up of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Professor Ko Jan Ming, Mr.
Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, Eugene.
Professor Ko Jan Ming is currently the chairman of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, Eugene is a certified
public accountant and possesses the appropriate accounting

qualifications and experiences in financial matters.

The Audit Committee holds regular meetings at lease twice a
year to review the Company’s annual and interim reports and
accounts. The Audit Committee meets with the Company’s
external auditors at least once a year to review the Company’s

annual report and accounts.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s Remuneration Committee was established
on 16 December 2005 with written terms of reference
and consists of a majority of Independent Non-executive
Directors. The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to
set policy on executive directors’ remuneration and for fixing
remuneration packages for all directors. The Remuneration
Committee’s terms of reference are available on the
Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is now made up of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Professor Ko
Jan Ming, Mr. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. Fung Pui
Cheung, Eugene, and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Yau
Kwok Fai. Professor Ko Jan Ming is currently the chairman of

the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to
reviewed the remuneration of Executive Directors and make

recommendations to the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transactions. Following
specific enquiry made by the Company, the Directors have
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2008.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
Full details of the Directors’ interests in the shares of the

Company are set out in the Reports of the Directors on pages

45 to 47.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the remuneration paid to
the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out
below:
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Audit services 1% SR 1,680,000
Non-audit services: JeBR S -

Taxation services B R 156,000

Review on very substantial transaction IR EKRRZ S 400,000

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective system of internal control to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets, and for

reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the internal control

system of the Company on a continuous and regular basis.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communication with shareholders and
investors in general. The various channels via which the
Company communicates with its shareholders include interim
and annual reports, information on the Stock Exchange‘s and

the Company’s website, and general meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s
general meetings where the Chairman and the Executive
Directors of the Board are available to answer questions.
Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual directors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company’s bye-laws provide that shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth of the Company’s paid-up capital
carrying voting rights have at all times the right to request
the Board to call a special general meeting to discuss specified
business transactions. The Board is required to call such
meeting within two months after the deposit of a written
notice by such shareholders.

Procedures for demanding a poll are included in the circular
to shareholders despatched together with the annual report.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flows for that year.

The external auditors of the Company acknowledge their
reporting responsibilities in their auditors’ report on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008 as set
out in the Report of the Auditors on pages 54 to 55.
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The directors are pleased to present their report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and the provision of corporate management services.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 19 to the financial statements. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the
states of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 56 to 156.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and balance sheets of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements, is set out on page 5 of the
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
and investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in notes 14 and 16 to the financial statements. Further
details of the Group’s properties are set out on pages 12 to 15.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as at 31 March 2008 are set out in notes 31 and 32 to the
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There were no movements in the Company’s authorised share
capital during the year. Movements in the issued share capital
and share options of the Company and the reasons therefore
are set out in notes 34 and 35 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 36(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2008, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
approximately HK$68,145,000. In addition, the Company’s
share premium account, in the amount of approximately
HK$167,404,000 at 31 March 2008, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions of
approximately HK$117,000 (2007: HK$177,000).

oL

JBE AR e ik B i

A BEN > AR W] 2Z 8 08 B AR AT ] 5 ) o
A2\ E] O AT B AS B I e i s B A LR A
R B R AR M R34 35 o

B i i

AR ) 2 24 T A S T R O 00 3 088 S i
B2 B0 5% > Wt A 24 T 908 JE L A ) B AT IR
5 B W

JoE S~ Dol o o B R A W 2 b g

AR FE A > A4y ] i S0 AT 7 T JaS 2 D S O
B~ 0 o] o AR A T AR bR R e

it A
AR FEN > A Ay T B A 55 [ 2 A G 5 ) AN
53 R B s R B 3 6(b) AR A RE RS B K o

w4k 23 IR G B

WM_ZRBANFEZHA=Z+—H  MEHEE
—HN—E AR E (RERT) B EFHHE > &K
2 ) Z A1 Bk 43 IR Gk A £968,145,0008 76 © AR
EN/NEIRINVE AN Sy W ) & X B
P ZBENE=ZH =4 —H#167,404,0008 5T o

BHEEX
ASAE BE Y > A4 [ AR 2 2K 4R K £1117,000
Wt (ZFE L4 1 177,000 0) -

41



42

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
oW

MA]JOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, contract revenue earned from the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 93% (2007:
91%) of the total contract revenue for the year and contract
revenue earned from the largest customer included therein
accounted for approximately 53% (2007: 56%).

Subcontracting charges paid to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 47% (2007: 30%) of the
total subcontracting charges and material costs incurred for
the year. Subcontracting charges paid to the largest supplier

included therein accounted for approximately 17% (2007:
8%).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five

largest customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung (Chairman)
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Chi Pong
Mr. Mak Hon Kuen Peter (appointed on 1 April 2008)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph

Independent non-executive directors:
Professor Ko Jan Ming

Mr. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung Eugene

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Yau Kwok
Fai and Mr. Fung Pui Cheung Eugene will retire by rotation,
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The appointment of each of Professor Ko Jan Ming, Mr. Ip
Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, Eugene, as
extended based on the respective agreement between them

and the Company, was for a term of two years ending on 31
August 2008.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of Professor Ko Jan
Ming, Mr. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. Fung Pui Cheung
Eugene an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), and the Company considers all of the independent

non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 27 to 33

of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Ngai Chun Hung and Mr. Yau Kwok Fai have respectively
entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial period of three years commencing from 1 September
2000 and such contracts continue thereafter until terminated
by either party by giving a six-month written notice.

Mr. Li Chi Pong entered into a service contract with the
Group that commenced from 17 May 2004 and continue
without a fixed period until terminated by either party by

giving a six-month written notice.

Mr. Mak Hon Kuen Peter entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial period of one year commenced
from 1 April 2008.

Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph entered into a continuous service
contract with the Company in respect of his service as a Non-

executive Director commencing from 1 January 2007.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
The directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the

financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

On 28 February 2006, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with Frason Holdings Limited (“Frason”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Ngai Chun Hung (“Mr. Ngai”),
whereby the Group leased office premises at a monthly rental
of HK$300,000 from Frason for a three-year term from 1
March 2006 to 28 February 2009. Further information is
provided under “Connected transactions” below and in note
40 to the financial statements.

On 28 August 2007, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
Profit Chain Investments Limited (“Profit Chain”), Mr. Ngai
and Winflower International Holdings Limited (“Winflower”,
a company beneficially owned by Mr. Ngai) entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (“Agreement”), whereby Profit
Chain agreed to acquire from Mr. Ngai and Winflower the
entire issued share capital of Winner City Investment Limited
(“Winner City”) and Frason and the loans owing to Mr. Ngai,
for an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$145
million, of which approximately HK$65 million was settled in
cash and HK$80 million by way of issue of 347,826,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.23 per share. The
consideration was determined with reference to the net assets
of Winner City and Frason and the face values of the loans
owing to Mr. Ngai. The transaction constituted a related
transaction and very substantial acquisition of the Company,
details of which are set out in the Company’s circular dated
21 September 2007.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, no director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a

party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. Ngai is a director and substantial shareholder of
Winflower Investment Limited, Win Source Investment
Limited, Key Fame Limited and Key Fund Limited, which
are companies incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in

property investment.

The power to make material business decisions for the Group
is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board considers that
there may be a conflict of interest between the Group and
any Director, such Director (including Mr. Ngai who is the
Chairman of the Board and a substantial shareholder of the
Company) will be required to abstain from voting. Therefore,
the Board is capable of carrying on the Group’s business
independently of, and at arm’s length, from the business of Mr.
Ngai.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective associates is interested in any business which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of
the directors in the share capital of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT #3884y B A B Be 6y b 2 B 33
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING KE¥8 (&)

SHARES (continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Capacity and

nature of

Name of director Notes interest

WHREH HiiE 5 By Bo b 23 PR

Mr. Ngai Chun Hung (a) As founder and

AR eSS beneficiary of a

discretionary trust

(- R A

RN T E YN

Personal

i A

Mr. Yau Kwok Fai (b) Through a controlled

i 1 M 5 A corporation

Bz rER G E A

Mr. Li Chi Pong Personal

e P N

Mr. Ip Kwok Him Personal

B e S A i A

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung Eugene Personal

B N
Notes:

(a) These shares are legally and beneficially owned by Winhale Ltd.
(“Winhale”), which is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and is ultimately beneficially owned by
Xyston Trust. Xyston Trust is a discretionary family trust set up by Mr.
Ngai for the benefits of Mr. Ngai and his family members.

(b) These shares are legally and beneficially owned by Business Success
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yau.

B AL 7] BRI

=
B

(a)

(b)

Percentage of

Number the Company’s
of ordinary issued share capital
shares held AR A B
Pids 35 e ¥ H JBA T Ay e
838,760,400 56.47%
5,406,000 0.36%
844,166,400 56.83%
30,888,000 2.08%
7,347,200 0.49%
844,800 0.06%

844,800 0.06%

% 2 B FEWinhale Led. ([ Winhale |) ¥ 2 &
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Share options of the Company:

During the year

Date of grant WAEW
Director (d/mfy) Granted Exercised
o g gram #7 i B
(H/A/48)
Ngai Chun Hung 31/08/2007 844,800 -
B A
Yau Kwok Fai 31/08/2007 8,448,000 -
e IR M
Shek Yu Ming Joseph 31/08/2007 8,448,000 -
£ i
Li Chi Pong 31/08/2007 8,448,000 -
R
Ko Jan Ming 31/08/2007 844,800 -
AW
Ip Kwok Him 31/08/2007 844,800 (844,800)
B B ol
Fung Pui Cheung 31/08/2007 844,800 (844,800)
Btk

In addition to the above, certain directors have non-
beneficial personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries
held for the benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of
complying with the previous minimum company membership
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Certain directors also have beneficial interests in non-voting
deferred shares in a subsidiary which practically carry no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote
at any general meeting or to participate in any distribution on
the winding-up of the subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the
directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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31 March period price
2008 (d/m/y) (HK$)
B FENE A7 139 17 A8
ZH=Z+—H (H/A/48) (#7x)
844,800 03/09/2007 - 0.400
02/09/2012
8,448,000 03/09/2007 - 0.400
02/09/2012
8,448,000 03/09/2007 - 0.400
02/09/2012
8,448,000 03/09/2007 - 0.400
02/09/2012
844,800 03/09/2007 - 0.400
02/09/2012
- 03/09/2007 - 0.400
02/09/2012
- 03/09/2007 - 0.400
02/09/2012
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests
in contract” and “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors

to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5
August 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (“2002 Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 17 August 2000.

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company are

disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements.
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OUTSTANDING SHARE OPTIONS
At 31 March 2008, options to subscribe for an aggregate of

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
oL

29,571,600 shares of the Company granted pursuant to the

2002 Option Scheme were outstanding, details of which are

set out below:

Grantees

REN

Directors # 5
Ngai Chun Hung

Hfelk

Yau Kwok Fai

Shek Yu Ming Joseph
A

Li Chi Pong

]

Ko Jan Ming

B

Ip Kwok Him

Wk
Fung Pui Cheung

i

Employees {E &
In aggregate il

Employees {E &
In aggregate A af

Date of
grant
(d/mfy)
L adil
(HIA /)

31/08/2007
31/08/2007
31/08/2007
31/08/2007
31/08/2007
31/08/2007

31/08/2007

31/08/2007

07/12/2006

At

31 March
2007
2R LA
ZHZ+—H

6,900,000

Granted
%y

844,800
8,448,000
8,448,000
8,448,000

844,800

844,800

844,800

1,998,000

6,900,000

During the year
TR
Exercised

frfl

(844,800)

(844,800)

(6,060,000)

Further details of the Company’s outstanding share options are

given in note 35 to the financial statements.

g AR AT 5 0 U DB At

R-FZNFEZA=Z+—H B _FFE 4
JES T BE T 0 52 3 i T R S 4529,571,600 % A< 2
W) B A 0 B RE R AT B o A BRI AR T -

Lapsed
vt

(300,000)

At

31 March
2008
REZENE
ZAZ+—H
844,800
8,448,000
8,448,000

8,448,000

844,800

1,998,000

540,000

Exercise
period
(d/mfy)
ligid
(HIA/E)

03/09/2007 -
02/09/2012
03/09/2007 -
02/09/2012
03/09/2007 -
02/09/2012
03/09/2007 -
02/09/2012
03/09/2007 -
02/09/2012
03/09/2007 -
02/09/2012
03/09/2007 -
02/09/2012

03/09/2007 -
02/09/2012

07/06/2007 -
06/06/2012

Exercise
price
HKS$

il
#r
0.400
0.400
0.400
0.400
0.400

0.400

0.400

0.400

0.165

A B AR A TR AT O B 2O — 2B REAG - W
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2008, the following interests and short positions

of 5% or more of the issued share capital and share options

of the Company were recorded in the register of interests

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336

of the SFO:

Long positions:

IR
Capacity and
nature of
interest
Name Notes B K
X YES Mt B % PR
Winhale Ltd. (“Winhale”) (a) Directly beneficially
owned
HEEREAR
Braveway Limited (b) As a trustee
TERfEFEN
HSBC International Trustee (c) As a trustee
Limited ERETEA
Dragon Gate Development Directly beneficially
Limited owned
HEERER
Chiu Koon Ming Andy Through a controlled
e 84 corporation
73 Z el i

Notes:

(a) The above interest in the name of Winhale was also disclosed as

interest of Mr. Ngai under the heading “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above. In addition, these
shares are ultimately beneficially owned by Xyston Trust.

(b) Winhale is wholly-owned by the Braveway Unit Trust. Braveway
Limited being the trustee of the Braveway Unit Trust is deemed to be
interested in those shares in the Company held by Winhale.

(c) HSBC International Trustee Limited being the trustee of Xyston
Trust is deemed to be interested in those shares in the Company held

by Xyston Trust.

F BB KA A A

T IR B A W DB Ay o

ZHEAE B RS
REBENEZHZ—H o M85 R 1
R 491 5753 360k 2 LA A 24 W A7 T 2 SR 35 %
AL O G 88 5 R BN B A A A B AT A
el IR RES 968 A b 2 W B I AT -

Number
of ordinary

shares held

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share capital

Pt 4547 ¥ i M A 2\ AT
JBe by ¥ H S A By b
838,760,400 56.47%
838,760,400 56.47%
838,760,400 56.47%
140,000,000 9.43%
140,000,000 9.43%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section headed “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares

of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 28 February 2006, Able Engineering Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement
with Frason Holdings Limited (“Frason”), which was wholly-
owned by Mr. Ngai, Chairman of the board of the Company,
to lease No.155, Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong for a three-
year term from 1 March 2006 to 28 February 2009 at a
monthly rental of HK$300,000 (“Tenancy Agreement”). The
Tenancy Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules, and
an announcement was published on 28 February 2006 in
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. During the period from 1 April 2007 to 26
October 2007 (the date of acquisition of Frason by the Group
as further described below), the Company paid rental of
HK$2,100,000 to Frason (2007: HK$3,300,000) according to
the terms of the Tenancy Agreement.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions with
Frason under the Tenancy Agreement for the year ended
31 March 2008 and have confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal
commercial terms with reference to prevailing market
conditions; and (iii) in accordance with the Tenancy
Agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

As discussed under “Directors’ interests in contracts” above,
on 26 October 2007, Profit Chain completed the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital and shareholder’s loans of
Winner City and Frason from Mr. Ngai and his controlled
company for an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$145 million, of which approximately HK$65 million
was settled in cash and HK$80 million by way of issue of
347,826,000 new ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.23
per share. The consideration was determined with reference to
the net assets of Winner City and Frason and the face values
of the shareholder’s loans owing to Mr. Ngai. The transaction
constituted a related transaction and very substantial
acquisition of the Company, details of which are set out in the
Company’s circular dated 21 September 2007. The transaction
was approved by the Company’s independent shareholders at
the special general meeting held on 9 October 2007.

Details about other related party transactions undertaken
in the normal course of business but not constituting
a discloseable connected transaction as defined under
the Listing Rules are set out in note 40 to the financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
Details of the significant post balance sheet event of the

Group are set out in note 42 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ngai Chun Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong
18 July 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
JA8 A S o

Elf ERNST & YOUNG
= K

To the shareholders of
Vantage International (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Vantage
International (Holdings) Limited set out on pages 56 to 156,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

18 July 2008

¥a8 A B i e

B A OB A s o 2 AR A R A A
S A LA AT 3 % o Ja L v I B OR R A1 3 AT B
SEEE R > WL E AT AL R A
B R UMb A5 B R R S AR A AT T K R
[

%W R AT R P DL U B S s A B R
TR B R RO AL R o BT8R A R FR P R
TP A S B > A Rl b R G T R R T
B R AR A TR B R RO Y e B o A R
il 5% S5 JE B IR A% R % B B % 4 A R % B
T 2 Fo Hb B Sk S s e A R R P 4 ] > DL
BN AR 2 RV AR IR o < /A B A R E
A RO B AR R o TR A R
PR FH 9 1 5t BOR ARG 6 0 1 % A R Al R
B o DL B B Ak i R R 1 5 5K

FAVAAE > AT P 28 A 0 0 A s v R R L
i 7 BAM AL TR L PR BB -

HR
FAGE Ay > % B R AR O R B
WA AR BARM R MR

“EFNFE=ZHA=ZFHOMHER L HE
MEEZALFEEEAMBSRE . o
R 8 2 R AR 1)) 1 48 8 A 2 oy A R

KK ik i 246 5 P
ES g

i

H B il A 8 R

I ¢ < o0 0T 188

ZEZFZNFELH+INH

55



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Ay Wk R

Year ended 31 March 2008 #t &£ -~ EENFE=H="—HILFEEZE

REVENUE
Contract costs
Property expenses

Gross profit
Other income and gains
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(HK cents)

Basic

Diluted

BA

i #RAR
ES i E

EH

J At e A\ e Wi
FTBLBA X

HoAt B 52
s

B e iy e A

BiIH

A B

JEAY Al :

AT RS RA A

Bl
RERR AN
HEAY; 45 Bt 28 A
(Al
2 %N

0

Notes

Ml ik

10

13

2008 2007
—FFNE FFLE
HK$°000 HK’000
T#x T#T
2,078,258 1,529,196
(1,940,307)  (1,447,906)
(1,283) (1,441)
136,668 79,849
40,609 36,322
(50,063) (38,7176)
(548) (3,837)
(33,160) (30,504)
93,506 43,054
(17,408) (5,914)
76,098 37,140
76,098 37,140

6.5 3.9

6.4 3.9




NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Properties held for development
Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Gross amount due from
customers for contract work

Properties under development

Property held for sale

Accounts receivable

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Amounts due from
jointly-controlled entities

Derivative financial instruments

Tax recoverable

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets classified as

held for sale

Total current assets

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mOoBEEAMER
31 March 2008 W ZFFENE=ZH=4+—H
2008 2007
“EFENE ZERFLE
Notes HKS$’000 HK’000
M aE T#rx T
0 By ¥
Wik - HEAS Bt 14 17,965 12,204
AR 15 115,500 115,586
Ea<g/ES 16 613,104 412,810
FEAT - H A B AF 17 114,985 9,709
i B AR 861,554 550,309
o B
EWEFZ a5

TRk Aa % 21 267,744 157,391
B3 22 21,299 17,021
FAENEZME 23 44,833 44,833
JAE W R ik 24 239,817 192,759
AR ~ =8 Kk

At JE Wk 25 36,892 66,221
JAE W e [l e )

H K 20 1,830 120
A 4t TR 29 920 680
A g [E] A TH 3 849
KA K 26 6,035 8,445
Bl 4 T Bl 4 S 26 83,802 49,550

703,175 537,869
SRR AEEREZ

I H) & 27 - 113,000

i A A 703,175 650,869
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
A EERAMR

31 March 2008 R ZFEENE=ZH=4+—H

2008 2007
BB N —EFELE
Notes HK$’000 HK’000
Mt T#x B
CURRENT LIABILITIES ) £ 4
Accounts payable JRE A+ B 3k 28 251,398 262,370
Gross amount due to customers BAERZ AR
for contract work TRk A% 21 69,335 44,133
Tax payable JRE A5k B I 12,422 1,286
Other payables and accruals At AF 3k S AR B 30 10,726 9,627
Interest-bearing bank and AT B SRAT B At A 3k
other borrowings 31 188,586 305,558
Total current liabilities TRE A A A 532,467 622,974
NET CURRENT ASSETS L B L 170,708 27,895
TOTAL ASSETS LESS W e B
CURRENT LIABILITIES iR R E R 1,032,262 578,204
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  JE3 8 4 14
Interest-bearing bank loans B SRAT B 31 503,976 255,015
Deferred tax liabilities 5 L A58 JE B 33 33,769 14,612
Total non-current liabilities JE i B £ £ AR 537,745 269,627
Net assets & E A 494,517 308,577
EQUITY B 23
Equity attributable to equity BEA R BERRF5 A
holders of the parent R A i 2
Issued capital CEAT AR 34 37,132 23,519
Reserves Tt e 36(a) 457,385 285,058
Total equity HARERR 494,517 308,577
Ngai Chun Hung Yau Kwok Fai
Director Director
X733 i B

EH P



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2008 #t £ -~ FENE=H=F—HILFEEZE

At 1 April 2006
Profit for the year

Equity-settled share option

arrangements (note 35)

At 31 March 2007

At 1 April 2007
[ssue of shares (note 34)

Share issue expenses

(note 34)

Transfer upon exercise

of share options (note 34)
Profit for the year

Equity-settled share option
arrangements (note 35)

At 31 March 2008

£

sheet.

Share Share
Issued  premium Contributed  Goodwill option  Retained
capital account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
[RE ) &t B [if1 ik Bt 3
JBe A e g i i i il Mt
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T T T T F# F#
BHZRANENA—H 23,519 75,391 11,421 (5,035) - 165,956 271,252
AR R - - - - - 37,140 37,140
DIVRE 25 4581 W e
(Hit33) - - - - 185 - 185
RERZLE=A=1—0 13519 75,391* 11,421% (5,035)* 185%  203,096* 308,577
BHZZLENH—H 23,519 75,391 11,421 (5,035) 185 203,096 308,577
BITRG (M its4) 13,613 92,572 - - - - 106,185
BIRnER
(H#34) - (1,069) - - - - (1,069)
FAL W L R A7 6 1
Bl (i) - 510 - - (510) - -
AR - - - - - 76,098 76,098
DARE 25 45 500 5 0
(Hit35) - - - - 4,726 - 4,726
BEZZANEZAZH—H 37,132 167,404 11,421% (5,035)%  4,401*  279,194%* 494,517

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  *

HK$457,385,000 (2007: HK$285,058,000) in the consolidated balance

#I0) o

WEMERDAEREAEEABREPZEA
fi f#§457,385,000% 76 (= F & L 4E : 285,058,000
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

WA Bl R R R

Year ended 31 March 2008 #t &£ -~ EENFE=H="—HILFEEZE

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments
Impairment of properties held
for development
Provision for properties under
development
Gain on disposals of items of
property, plant and
equipment, net
Write-off of items of property,
plant and equipment
Changes in fair value of
investment properties, net
Changes in fair value of
derivative financial
instruments
Equity-settled share option
expense

Increase in amounts due from
jointly-controlled entities
Increase in properties held for

development
Increase in gross
amount due from customers
for contract work
Increase in properties under
development
Increase in accounts
receivable
(Increase)/decrease in
prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in accounts
payable
Increase/(decrease) in gross
amount due to customers for
contract work
Increase/(decrease) in other
payables and accruals

Notes

Wk

BEEHZ
Bl bt
W B il ¥
BT I H A e
Lip 5|

LB WA

s

FEA LA

AsF sk A A 6
FrAfEg Rz

LUE SN 6
EJELEVE St

H 5 - 7
A H 2 R -

el
s ~ HeAs &
B EH 6
BEWHEN A

W) 5
ik &m T H

N B 5 B)

DABE 25 45 1
Ji 3t HE 2 35

o\

JRE W A ] 2
LR H
FA RN

JEWE P2z A% TR
AE I

b E Sl
JRE Wi B Ak 44
PN RO ~ T R

F At FE WK

() Wb
WA ik B~ (9 4)

FEAT % P 2 & 4 TR
KA (W)

At JE ARk 5k I T 412
BRI, (W)

2008 2007
“EENE CERRLEE
HK$’000 HK’000
T#7 T#T
93,506 43,054
33,160 30,504
(21,064) (7,455)
3,687 3,861
1,405 256
924 -

— 171

(20) (6,440)

= 685
(14,839) (19,107)
(240) (1,432)
4,726 185
101,245 44,282
(1,710) (120)
(838) (86)
(110,353) (122,336)
(4,278) (295)
(47,058) (54,524)
32,718 (15,623)
(10,972) 68,315
25,202 (7,259)
189 (209)




Cash used in operations
Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash outflow from operating

activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of investment
properties

Proceeds from disposals of items
of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of
investment properties

(Increase)/decrease in pledged
time deposits

Acquisitions

Net cash inflow from

investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

[ssue of shares

Proceeds from exercise of
share options

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Capital element of finance lease
rental payments

Net cash inflow from financing

activities

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
WA Bl R R R

Year ended 31 March 2008 #t £ -~ FENE=H=F—HILFEEZE

MR EE 2 Bl
T B
[EXppil-)
O 7 o ) 15 A

R RBZ BlE

BEEHZBEHE

S B ~ B K
B H
i B BB

3 - B Sl
JH H Z Bk

HEREYEZ
Pk
TR W1 A7k
i) Wb
e

BRERBGZHERA

i R 2 Bl A

AT

Ji e R AE AT 3 Y
Ptk

W AT B

fE R SRAT HEk

il A B AL e Ak
BEAHR 4

i S Bl
FAFH

Notes

Mt ik

14

37

34
34

2008 2007
ZRZE)NE —RFLE
HK$’000 HK’000
F#x TFH#C
(15,855) (87,855)
21,064 7,455
(33,160) (30,504)
(5,103) (5,054)
(33,054) (115,958)
(3,138) (8,782)
(455) (1,443)

20 22,955
113,000 -
1,381 (206)
(64,585) -
46,223 12,524
42,390 -
1,675 -
712,510 462,663
(718,231) (389,085)
(29) (50)
38,315 73,528
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

WA Bl R R R

Year ended 31 March 2008 #t &£ -~ EENFE=H="—HILFEEZE

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE)
IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES
OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired
Time deposits with original
maturity of less than three
months when acquired,
pledged as security against
bank overdraft facilities

Bank overdrafts

Notes

it

Bl& R BLE% MY
Wom,/ (W4)
T8

FERZBE R
Bl EY

HERZBER
B S

Bl BB E% MY
Bk b

Bl K SRAT A i 26
JEA B A AR
=i H Z AL

7E B A7 K 26
ORI 25 SR AT

BB

S H A

ZMAzZ

7E W17 K 26
RITBEX 31

2008 2007
ZEEBNE ERLE
HK$’000 HK’000
T T
51,484 (29,906)
29,819 59,725
81,303 29,819
60,351 44,541
23,451 5,009
1,072 2,101
(3,571) (21,832)
81,303 29,819




NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT
ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital

Reserves

Total equity

J G B
N AR &

By ¥ e

FEA R ~ B R
Al E Wik
T A2 K

Bl MB &% EY

B 7 AR

i By £1 4

Ath B Aok % B3R 2

JEASS A
B F AR

By VR
(£ f 5 1)

HREFE
£

TR
fiti 5

Notes

Ml ik

19

25
26
26

34
36(b)

BALANCE SHEET
AR

31 March 2008 #E ZFEF/NFE=H=—1—HI-FSF
2008 2007
BN ZERRLE
HK$’000 HK’000
T T
277,543 164,608

- 11

- 4,155

410 214

410 4,380

213 1,755

658 202

871 1,957

(461) 2,423
277,082 167,031
37,132 23,519
239,950 143,512
277,082 167,031

Ngai Chun Hung
Director
L%
#HH

Yau Kwok Fai
Director
i B
i
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUA B ik o B ik

31 March 2008 Z=FEZFE/NE=ZH=1—H

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Vantage International (Holdings) Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.
The principal place of business of the Company is 155
Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following

principal activities:

e a wide range of construction, civil engineering,
renovation and other contract works in public and
private sectors in Hong Kong

e  property investment

e  property development

The Company is a public company with its shares listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Winhale
Ltd. (“Winhale”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

2w B R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and derivative financial instruments, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except

when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2008. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All significant intercompany transactions and balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

SV e o Y ik

31 March 2008 ZZEZFE/NE=ZH=—4+—H

2.1 &L

7K L 5 A 7 M T A R A 2
A v B B e ok i S (7 o T 5 o v U )
(B35 A 0 8 S 5 i o S B0~ A 9 it o
W (T arat i) k) - F# e
PR AN Z 7wt IR B A o 2 m R ) 4k s L
SE T A o A B 785 3R G 2 R B R s
T A S > M 1 S e AT A Ak TR R A
FAE R BRAD o AT ik DL ot (T ])
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 5 3 Y ke
31 March 2008 ZFEFENF=H=1—H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 2.2 3 G K B0 T A v O S R e v 1 Y

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRS:s for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to
new and revised accounting policies and additional
disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised
standards and interpretations has had no material effect

on these financial statements.

HKERS 7

T v T 75 o e ) SR 7 5%

HKAS 1 Amendment

BV wE RS R (55T

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8

TS (B % G R B &) R AR s
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

vk (BB R R B ) s R ot
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10
HE(FBMEERZBRZRE) B9
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11
HE(EEMEERTBRZEG) A1

W

A 45 ) O K AR A AR JRE B S R N R
UCER A DL W7 5 B REAG T A 8 T 5 o
S o o T 17 L 4B Ok 3 % K A8 RT R
BOSR B BN 4 8 EORL A 5 BR AR % SR 3 %
A T Y ) R e TR B AR I S
GRUE N7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

2 TR : B

Capital Disclosures

B ek

Scope of HKFRS 2

7 I T R 7 R 5 2 9F 0 T
Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
RART A TR 1 TR P A

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

11 ] R 5 R A A 0 1

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions
T B R AR 2 9E ¢ 5P R AE IR 1 58 S

PR AN % 50T 5 B KRG RT A i T o v
MEEBENT ¢

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

HKFRSs are as follows:

(a) FWBRS MBI/ 2/ TH -

w5

ii% 8 JU) % e B 0K i B 5 A% 1 A
F BE A AT A A 4R T 4 b TR A T B
Be % 45 < T EL A A Y L A A T
Be R JBE 0 40 B8 o ST 43¢ B o RO S B
A A o il A A SR I B AR UL
S SN T E A REENEY Y]
HGOLT BT R o

(a) HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users of
the financial statements to evaluate the significance
of the Group’s financial instruments and the nature
and extent of risks arising from those financial
instruments. The new disclosures are included
throughout the financial statements. While there has
been no effect on the financial position or results of
operations of the Group, comparative information

has been included/revised where appropriate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(continued)

(b)

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make
disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital. These
new disclosures are shown in note 41 to the financial

statements.
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be applied
to any arrangement in which the Group cannot
identify specifically some or all of the goods or
services received, for which equity instruments are
granted or liabilities (based on a value of the Group’s
equity instruments) are incurred by the Group for
a consideration, and which appears to be less than
the fair value of the equity instruments granted or
liabilities incurred. The interpretation has had no

effect on these financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

This interpretation requires that the date to assess
whether an embedded derivative is required to be
separated from the host contract and accounted
for as a derivative is the date that the Group first
becomes a party to the contract, with reassessment
only if there is a change to the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows. As the Group
has no embedded derivative requiring separation
from the host contract, the interpretation has had no

effect on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WO 5 i A B
31 March 2008 Z=FEZFE/NE=ZH=1—H
2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(continued)
(e) HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of
1 April 2007, which requires that an impairment
loss recognised in a previous interim period in
respect of goodwill or an investment in either an
equity instrument classified as available-for-sale or
a financial asset carried at cost is not subsequently
reversed. As the Group had no impairment losses
previously reversed in respect of such assets, the
interpretation has had no impact on the financial

position or results of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 requires arrangements whereby
an employee is granted rights to the Group’s equity
instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled
scheme, even if the Group acquires the instruments
from another party, or the shareholders provide
the equity instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int
11 also addresses the accounting for share-based
payment transactions involving two or more entities
within the Group. As the Group’s current policy for
share-based payment transactions aligns with the
requirements of the interpretation, the interpretation
is unlikely to have any financial impact on the

Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HKFRSs
The Group has not early applied any new and revised
HKFRS:s, that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the accounting year ended 31 March 2008 in these
financial statements. Of the new and revised HKFRSs,
the following may be relevant to the Group’s operations

and financial statements:

HKFRS 2 Amendment

Yo 5 3 Y ke
31 March 2008 ZFEENF=H=4+—H
2.3 LA 80 R 2 300 A s U i
¥ HJ 1y 5 28
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Share-based Payments — Vesting Conditions and

Cancellations !

T v B 75 i 4k o I SR 2 5% (1B 5T)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

LA 1 72 F 5 1 £ 5k — B Jig 1 £ 70 i 1

Business Combinations ?

T v B 7 4 4 J) SR 30% (RIERT) BHEGO?

HKERS 8 Operating Segments !

Tr V5 B s 4 i B SR 8 5% HES

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements !

Fr v wh e R 2R 198 (RRAERT) Vg EJEIE &

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs !

s & wH MR SR 2398 (RRIEET) e e-dik

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements *
s & uh M R 2R 2798 (RUEET) B R B B R R

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendment

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations

Arising on Liquidation !

Al QSR 329 A A s wh o SR 5% (f&aT)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Effective for business combinations with acquisition date on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET 2.3 LA M A TG A 2 S 0 7 I I R

70

EFFECTIVE HKFRSs (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 2 clarifies the definition of
“vesting conditions” and specifies the accounting
treatment of “cancellation” by the counterparty to a
share-based arrangement. Vesting conditions are service
conditions which require the counterparty to complete
a specified period of service and performance conditions
which require a specified period of service and specified
performance targets to be met. Other features of a share-
based payment are not vesting conditions. All non-
vesting conditions and vesting conditions that are market
conditions shall be taken into account when estimating
the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The
cancellation is accounted for as an acceleration of the
vesting and the amount that would otherwise have been
recognised over the remainder of the vesting period
is recognised immediately. Any payment made to the
employee on cancellation shall be accounted for as the
repurchase of an equity interest, with excess over fair
value of equity instruments granted recognised as an
expense. If the share-based arrangement included liability
components, the liability should be measured/stated at
fair value at the date of cancellation and any payment
made to settle the liability shall be accounted for as an
extinguishment of the liability. The Group expects to
adopt this amendment from 1 April 2009.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 3 has been revised to bring more transactions
into acquisition accounting as combinations by contract
alone and combinations of mutual entities are brought
into the scope of the standard and the definition of a
business has been amended slightly. It now states that the
elements are “capable of being conducted” rather than
“are conducted and managed”. It requires considerations
(including contingent consideration), each identifiable
asset or liability to be measured at its acquisition-date fair
value (except leases and insurance contracts), reacquired
right, indemnification assets as well as some assets and
liabilities required to be measured in accordance with
other HKFRSs. They are income taxes, employee benefits,
share-based payment and non-current assets held for
sale and discontinued operations. Any non-controlling
interest in an acquiree is measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. The Group expects

to adopt HKFRS 3 (Revised) from 1 April 2010.

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting, specifies how an entity should report
information about its operating segments, based on
information about the components of the entity that is
available to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of allocating resources to the segments and
assessing their performance. The standard also requires
the disclosure of information about the products and
services provided by the segments, the geographical areas
in which the Group operates, and revenue from the
Group’s major customers. The Group expects to adopt

HKFRS 8 from 1 January 2009.

HKAS 1 has been revised to introduce changes in
presentation and disclosures of financial statements. It
separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The
statement of changes in equity will include only details
of transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes
in equity presented as a single line. In addition, it
introduces the statement of comprehensive income which
presents all items of income and expense recognised in
profit or loss, together with all other items of recognised
income and expense, either in one single statement, or in
two linked statements.
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EFFECTIVE HKFRSs (continued)

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of
borrowing costs when such costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset. As the Group’s current policy for
borrowing costs aligns with the requirements of the
revised standard, the revised standard is unlikely to have

any financial impact on the Group.

HKAS 27 has been revised to require non-controlling
interests (i.e., minority interests) to be presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity of the owners of the
parent. Total comprehensive income must be attributed
to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
the loss of control are accounted for within equity. When
control of a subsidiary is lost, the assets and liabilities and
related equity components of the former subsidiary are
derecognised. Any gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary is
measured at its fair value at the date when control is lost.
The Group expects to adopt HKAS 27 (Revised) from 1
April 2010.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments have been revised
to require puttable financial instruments and instruments
or components of instruments that impose on the entity
an obligation to deliver to another party a pro rata
rate of the share of the net assets of the entity only on
liquidation to be classified as equity. The Group expects
to adopt HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments from 1
April 2009.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are

stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the

other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture entity and
the basis on which the assets are to be realised upon
its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint
venture’s operations and any distributions of surplus assets
are shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with

the terms of the joint venture agreement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2008 ZFEFNFE=ZH=1—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise

significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence

over, the joint venture.

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that
is subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the

economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entities
are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of

accounting, less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities (continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,

respectively.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the jointly-controlled entities, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the date

of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or
after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially measured
at cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value

may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the

Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 e Bok e (58)
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POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or
after 1 January 2005 (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in
this circumstance is measured based on the relative values
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated reserves
Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA’s Statement
of Standard Accounting Practice 30 “Business
Combinations” (“SSAP 30”) in 2001, goodwill arising
on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated
reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of
HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated against the
consolidated reserves and is not recognised in the income
statement when all or part of the business to which the
goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than properties under development, property held for
sale, construction contract assets, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, investment properties, goodwill and
non-current assets classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting

policy for that revalued asset.
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78

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as
to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (ii) has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)
or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant
and equipment, and where the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an

additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
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as follows:
Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining term of the land lease and 40 years
LS8 $ 1 i L L R A0 4R S 4048 (DA JE 3 2 )

Leasehold improvements

MEYEHKE

Machinery and equipment 20% to 24%
ey Kokl 20% % 24%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment  20% to 24%
PR, ~ [ 4 B A S A 20%%24%

Motor vehicles 30%
HL 30%

Over the shorter of the lease term and 20%

FE I B20% (DL A 5 7 )
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value
at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of properties for
subsequent accounting is their fair value at the date of
change in use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Properties held for development

Properties held for development are stated at cost less
impairment losses. These properties are reclassified as
properties under development when they are substantially

ready for development.

Properties under development

Properties under development for re-sale are included
under current assets and are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost comprises acquisition cost,
construction costs, interest and other direct attributable
costs. Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the estimated selling price less estimated total cost of the
development and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale of the property.

Property held for sale

Property held for sale is stated in the balance sheet at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such

assets and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets (other than investment properties and
financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less

costs to sell.
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POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of
a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases are included
in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs
of such leases are charged to the income statement so
as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the

lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a

financing nature are accounted for as finance leases.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, or
loans and receivables, as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a
party to it and assesses whether the embedded derivative
is required to be separated from the host contract when
the analysis shows that the economic characteristics
and risks of embedded derivatives are not closely
related to those of the host contract. Reassessment only
occurs if there is a change in terms of the contract that
significantly realities the cash flows that would otherwise
be required under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance
sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains
and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through the amortisation process.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts. Gains
or losses on these financial assets are recognised in
the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the income statement does not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference to
quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the
balance sheet date. For investments where there is no
active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially
the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option
pricing models.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a

group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there
is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at

the reversal date.

In relation to accounts receivable, a provision for
impairment is made when there is objective evidence
(such as the probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the debtor and significant changes
in technological, market economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group
will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under
the original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount
of the receivables is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when

they are assessed as uncollectible.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party

under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in
the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of
a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a
written and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled
option or similar provision) on the transferred asset,
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is
the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may
repurchase, except in the case of a written put option
(including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on
an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower
of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option

exercise price.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings)

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
payables and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are initially stated at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. The related interest expense
is recognised within “finance costs” in the income

statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the amortisation process.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS
39 are accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract,
except when such contract is recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation

recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such
as interest rate swaps to hedge its risks associated with
interest rate fluctuations. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as

liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are

taken directly to the income statement.

The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is
determined by reference to market values of similar

instruments.

Construction, renovation and other contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and the appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims
and incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise
direct materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed

construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is
recognised on the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the percentage of certified value

of work performed to the contract sum for each contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by management.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Construction, renovation and other contracts (continued)
Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the
surplus is treated as an amount due from customers for

contract work.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as an amount due to customers for

contract work.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to

use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a

different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

e  where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and interests in
joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised

except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income over the periods necessary to match
the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is

intended to compensate.
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POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from construction, renovation and other contracts,
based on the percentage of completion basis, as
further explained in the accounting policy for
“Construction, renovation and other contracts”

above;

(b) from work orders of contracts for alterations,
additions, repairs and maintenance, based on the
value of individual work orders certified by relevant
employers;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instruments to the

net carrying amount of the financial assets; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using the Black-Scholes model, further
details of which are given in note 35 to the financial
statements. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other
than conditions linked for the price of the shares of the
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable. The cost
of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the
“vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and the end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated
as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance

conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification, which increases the total fair value
of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.
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POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of

the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the balance sheet date is permitted
to be carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at
the balance sheet date for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees

and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORSQ”) retirement benefits scheme for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the ORSO
scheme. This scheme operates in a way similar to the
MPF scheme, except that when an employee leaves the
scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employee
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the relevant amount
of forfeited employer’s contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the balance sheet, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional
currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the

date when the fair value was determined.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

A s

S 5 it DA A 2 ) Y oh BB R B i B W T
Bt o A 4 I 4% TR U G S A B v 3 fE B
W o 2% BT A T SRR B I H UG B R oh
REE W AT & - MR B W IR IR R B H H )
BB £ 1 2 BE R GUHR o DASR W s B Y £
MEERAEEERS TR R ZE
R > T A B R A K EE & o DLA
WS Sl AR A B W R > A AR
A2 5 H O E A o AW A F R SR
FER I H > & AP E B E H A E R
o

F ZEE kA B K At

A LA S [ Y A A R A L R
904 o 5 MO ~ B3~ LA
PR e o G R I ~ A A B o SR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Properties held for development

The Group has leased out certain properties on a short
term basis even it is the Group’s intention to redevelop
these properties at some stage for higher value and/or
higher returns. Accordingly, these properties are stated as
properties held for development in the balance sheet. At
31 March 2008, these properties had an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$115,500,000 (2007: HK$115,586,000).

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Construction, renovation and other contracts

As explained in note 2.4 to the financial statements,
revenue and profit recognition on an incomplete project
is dependent on the estimation of the total outcome
of the construction contract, as well as the work done
to date. Based on the Group’s recent experience and
the nature of the construction activities undertaken
by the Group, the Group makes estimates of the point
at which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and the revenue can be
reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is reached,
the amounts due from customers for contract work as
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements will not
include profit which the Group may eventually realise
from the work done to date. In addition, actual outcomes
in terms of total cost or revenue may be higher or lower
than estimated at the balance sheet date, which would
affect the revenue and profit recognised in future years as
an adjustment to the estimated amounts recorded to date.

3.

Yo 5 2 B ik
31 March 2008 ZZEZFENE=ZH=4+—H
S EA R A ()

A i

TP JE FH A 45 T 7 it B0 SR A R v > A
i A DL S B AR b O AR
R I T K B VB (B BeAdi st B A1) -

FHHIFERZ Y #

BESRASEE B G B AE 3 T e B g sy 2%
VI 75 0 0 M R B R el s HRE
WECIKEBAAHM - FHilk Z5WE
EEEAERPIAFHFAEERRZWE -
NRE-EEZNFEZA=ZT—H > ZEMER
W i AE £ 3% %5115,500,0008 6 (—F &L
48 1 115,586,000% I ) °

A sl B A e R

] R 5] B A AR R R R T A B B4
BEATDLE R AR KN EER
B DL &5 B A AR 2 Al A A R Y
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31 March 2008
3.

ZEFENEFE=H=4+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment test of assets

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired
at least on an annual basis or where an indication of
impairment exists. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the asset. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the assets and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those cash flows.

Fair value of investment properties

As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements,
investment properties are revalued at the balance sheet
date on market value, existing use basis by independent
professionally qualified valuers. Such valuations were
based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the judgement, information from
current prices in an active market for similar properties
is considered and assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the balance sheet date are

used.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information is presented in respect of the
Group’s business segments, which is chosen as the primary

reporting format.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the assets. No further
geographical information is presented as over 90% of the
Group’s revenue is derived from customers based in Hong
Kong, and over 90% of the Group’s assets are located in
Hong Kong.

3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and

managed separately according to the nature of their

operations and the products and services they provide.

Each of the Group’s business segments represents a

strategic business unit that offers products and services

which are subject to risks and returns that are different

from those of the other business segments. Summary

details of the business segments are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(e)

the building construction segment engages in
construction contract work as a main contractor
or subcontractor, primarily in respect of building

construction;

the renovation, repairs and maintenance segment
engages in repairs, maintenance, renovation and

fitting out works;

the civil engineering works segment engages in
roadworks, drainage and sewerage works, water
supply works, utilities engineering works and
landslip preventive and remedial works to slopes and

retaining walls;

the property investment segment invests in retail,
commercial and residential premises for their rental

income potential; and

the property development segment engages in the

development of properties.

There were no intersegment sales and transfers during the

year (2007: Nil).

Yo 5 3 Y ke
31 March 2008 ZZEFENF=H=4+—H
4. HBER ()

AP Z BB BN > 40k
BB - B R KO PR A 2 N AR
AP - REEMXEBZEBESBIRA
TR A 3 B 43 B B AR ) R B R el
k2 R ek S s A T R X S IR o

RSB

(a) BETHRSFEHRREETREGAPE
EAERERE S BR FERFEE
HETH

(b) BHWT - MM R ARy B AE1E - RAE
BT M B 5 TR 5

(c) BARTRIHHEZH > fR0EFE R TH
RBPEG TR KB TR R A3
B TR - R R i Bk 1l U
TR B e 5 TR 5

(d) MERESBHBERBAHESRA
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31 March 2008 ZFFNE=ZH=+—H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Business segments
The following tables present the revenue, profit and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for
the Group’s business segments for the years ended 31

March 2008 and 2007.

4. S BUER ()

e/ Tig |

TERIE T AEENEE S BAEKER
FNERZEFLFE=ZA=Z+—HILFE
R e N~ e A R T~ R S S Y
FRE -

Building construction ~ and maintenance  Civil engineering works  Property investment* Property development**  Consolidated

RETR i BBRRE TATE UES Y VEL 1 e

Group
A4 Renovation, repairs
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
CRENE CRRUE CERNE CRRLE CREIAE
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T  T#r  T#D  TEr TEx
Segment revenue: AEKA :

Sales o external customers —~ HETFHREF 41358 STI0M 1,086,464 796021 237,122

007 2008 007 2008 2007 2008 2007

CRRUE ZERAR ZERUE CIBNF CRRLE CERAR ZRRLE

HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
7T Tér  T#r  T#r  TET  Tér Ti#n

1375% 9988 5,165 3326 3380 2,018,258 1,529,196

Segment results Ve b 56860 19453 44787 30581 22,99

070 22291 3148 1,148 1876 149,082 97,103

Interest and unallocated MBRAREZ

income and gains BAR M
Unallocated expenses KRR
Finance costs g (i
Profit before tax WAt R
Tax il
Profit for the year B A
* The segment results of the property investment segment include

the net gain on changes in fair value of investment properties of
HK$14,839,000 (2007: HK$19,107,000).
**  The segment results of the property development segment include
the impairment loss on properties held for development of
HK$924,000 (2007: nil). For the year ended 31 March 2007, the
segment results of the property development segment include the
provision for properties under development of HK$171,000.

15,770 17205
(48,186)  (40,760)
33,160)  (30,504)

93,500 43,094
(17408)  (5914)

*OMEREEENSFEALBREDES
V- i 5% B 14 U 3% 514,839,000 76 (=&
Z-B4E £ 19,107,000%78) ©

OOMEBRBERNIFEALTRAEERE
24 3 0 B G $924,0008 8 (R Z L
o) MBREFRLE=ZHA=Z+—H
AR EBREHRN S HELT L
F5 8 vh 4 SEHEM 171,000 7€ -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Group
AR

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

QOther segment information:
Capital expenditure
Unallocated capital

expenditure

Depreciation on
unallocated assets

Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments - unallocated

(Reversal of impairment)/
impaitment of accounts
receivable

Impairment of properties held
for development

Provision for properties
under development

Gain on changes in fair value

of investment properties, net

Renovation, repairs

31 March 2008

4. S RUEF (5D

X8 H (8)

Building construction ~ and maintenance  Civil engineering works ~ Property investment ~ Property development Consolidated
RETH W SBRRE TATH LET L i B
2008 00T 2008 007 2008 2007 2008 2000 2008 2007 2008 2007
CERNE CRRUE SRR CRBLE SRR CIBLE CEBBNF CERLE CERNE CRRLE C3R\E C3RE
HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000  HK$000
e T#r TH#C TEr TEr TET TéL Fér TEL TEC TG TER
HRRARK
MikE 175438 161053 300941 156918 45,898  SL860 613,150 525999 181,657 177440 1,317,086 1073270
AATEE W65 1271908
iz 1,564,729 101,178
MREK 23,664 185607 67,182 04807 29871 13594 2963 316 L1300 1130 324810 31087
RATAR H5400 LI
A 1,070,212 892,601
TpREH -
BARY - - = - = - 18545 L1 = S (LA Ik
RAREARL
118888 878
304343 10895
ANHREL
il 3681 3861
At LR A
fH-A00 1,405 256
(WfER) /
R
- S (12000 1688 - - - . - S (12000 1,688
HHlERRL
VA - - - - - - = -9y ) -
B
N _ - _ i, . - - - il = il
SEHEATH
8l 4 - - = - = S 1489 19007 = - 189 19107
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31 March 2008 ZFEFNE=ZH=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the appropriate proportion of contract revenue from
construction, renovation and other contracts, and
the gross rental income received and receivable from

properties during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

follows:
Revenue BCA
Contract revenue ERIL N
Property gross rental income #3614 W A S5
Other income and gains A BN B B 2
Interest income B A
Net interest received on MATAESR T H
derivative financial T WY
instruments Fl S
— transactions —AFE
not qualifying as hedges BRI I3E 5
Sundry income FETE WA
Gain on changes in fair value FE&EWHEAFE

of investment properties,

BE s > FE

net
Gain on changes in fair value f72E4 @l T H
of derivative financial N VAESEE 2
instruments, net Wzs > A
— transactions not - AFHEY
qualifying as hedges A B 32 5
Gain on disposals of items HEME - R

of property, plant and

equipment, net

B H Z Wk

5.

WA~ JE Al BOA B Wt 2

We N (T BVAC SR T 1 8 SE0) T3 37 48 5 N
W~ R B SL b AR A A v 0 0 e 2
BRIV > et 360 T e HE WA 4 e A
R o

WA~ oAl e AT MR Z A BT

Group
A 4 1
2008 2007
“RFNE  FRLE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 T#x T#T
2,064,944 1,510,651
13,314 18,545
2,078,258 1,529,196
21,064 7,455
1,494 1,126
2,952 762
16 14,839 19,107
29 240 1,432
20 6,440
40,609 36,322
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31 March 2008 ZZEZFENE=ZH=4+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

6. BxBE i A

A 2 BRBLRT A A BR GEA) T3

charging/(crediting): A
Group
3 L |
2008 2007
“EENE CERFLE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K i T#x TF#oc
Depreciation i 14 3,687 3,861
Auditors’ remuneration 7 S5 T T 4 1,680 1,380
Employee benefits expense 1 B &A1 B 52
(exclusive of directors’ (FEFEEFEME
remuneration — note 8): — Fif5E8)
Wages and salaries T¥, k#Hi4 71,751 61,234
Equity-settled share option DIRE £ 45 500
expense ik IR e 35 408 185
Pension scheme Y R R
contributions (defined (S kst #))
contribution schemes) 2,540 1,582
Less: Forfeited W s TR WK
contributions** (73) (99)
Net pension scheme B ST E 3 F B
contributions 2,467 1,483
74,626 62,902
Minimum lease payments IO RIRZ R E
under operating leases: FHE R4 -
Land and buildings el J p 5,167 4,449
Equipment Bdi 11,360 8,166
16,527 12,615
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31 March 2008 ZFEFNFE=ZH=1—H
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Impairment of properties FAEERRZ
held for development* SESTRiERS

Provision for properties B LA

under development*

Loss on disposal of HEREY ¥
investment properties™ A Jl 4R

(Reversal of impairment)/ (A [ )
impairment of JARE W B sk ik AL
accounts receivable*

Amortisation of prepaid TEAT b FH B A K
land lease payments B 8

Gain on changes in 4Rl TRAPE
fair value of derivative BE g
financial instruments, net FHE-AFE
— transactions not EHRAE
qualifying as hedges 1%L 5

Write-off of items of property, SN ~ B4 X
plant and equipment* R HE H *

Government subsidies®** BURT & By e

Exchange losses, net* [ S i 48 > R

Net rental income A WA T

These are included in “Other expenses” on the face of the
consolidated income statement.

*#* At 31 March 2008, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in the
future years (2007: Nil).

##%  Subsidies have been received from the Hong Kong Vocational
Training Council, an institution established by the Hong Kong
SAR Government, for providing on-the-job training for graduate
engineers. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these subsidies.

6. BRBLH & A (%)

Group
S
2008 2007
ZRFNE FELSE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M it TF#x F#C
924 -
- 171
824 -
(1,200) 1,688
17 1,405 256
29 (240) (1,432)
= 685
(590) (428)
= 1,292
(12,031) (17,104)

koK

%I H TR A A Ak R Rz T Al B
e

RoZZNEZA=1—H » REMIER
A BB BB > DU AR A JL R AR AR AR
BB IRE S 2 gk (R LAE ) o

T B 4R 3 2 TR A A R A IS A
I AR (7 98 4 [ BOR s o 2 1)
ZE B - B A B %S B2 RIE AT
WA BBk A o



7.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant

to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing

Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind
Discretionary performance related
bonuses
Employee share option benefits*
Pension scheme contributions

(defined contribution schemes)

7.
AT AR S IE S Z MG
8.
s
Fo At
¥4~ B &
ERZENE
SLRBMRZ
W15 FE AL
R B % B A A
AR PR Gt sk
(5 B it 1)

Yo 5 2 B ik
31 March 2008 ZZEZFENE=ZH=4+—H
i g2 4|

Group

i |
2008 2007
“EENE FFHLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x T#T
33,160 30,504

o 30 4
ARLUR A W 0B 5 22 5 T A MR 4 WD g B B
(T b vie BB 1) e 7o 8 2 w] A 491 36 L6 1k 4%

B A EE R SR
Group
A 4 14
2008 2007
“ERNE CFFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#r
540 504
7,249 7,063
7,910 5,658
4,318 -
87 84
19,564 12,805

20,104 13,309
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31 March 2008

—RRNEZAZA—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

*

This represents the estimated fair value of the options granted to

8.

certain directors, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company during the year. The fair
value was measured as at the date of grant in accordance with the

Group’s accounting policy for “Employees’ benefits — share-based
payment transactions”, as disclosed in note 2.4. Details of these
options, including the principal terms and number of options
granted, are set out in note 35.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

(a)

The remuneration paid to independent non-

executive directors during the year were as follows:

Professor Ko Jan Ming
Mr. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP

M. Fung Pui Cheung Eugene

34 ()
Db AR AR A 4y B A A7 JE 1A 4R L 3 A £
BT RR o T AR 4 AR 4 ) B TR B % P
B BL S o 2 i B ME 2 A R A T A o dE Lt
JH FBE AR 1 2 SF- P 8L 45 A 4R PR I 2.4 95 B
A B T8 B Il — DA IRy 2 B R 6 5 ik 22 5%
Z R BOR > IR T H EF R o da S R
TR TENG (695 35 SRR B T 32 7 i T A

) i A B AR R3S
8 3k AT HE g

TP 4 B 9 ST T S JE AT R T
EWF

2008 2007

“ERN\E “RRLE
Employee share Total Total
Fees  option benefits remuneration Fees remuneration

lE
W i B A W e %3 ame
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#r T#r T#r T#x T#x
HENHH 180 127 307 168 168
R (REMER

KFAL) 180 127 307 168 168
Ly 180 127 307 168 168
540 381 921 504 504

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year

(2007: Nil).

T AAE BE N > S S E A 8 S JE BT
P HAMME (BT L &) -
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31 March 2008 ZZEFENF=H=4+—H
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. WML (&)

(b) Executive and non-executive director (b) #uAT BRI frHE g
Salaries,
allowances  Discretionary Employee Pension
and benefits  performance  share option scheme Total
in kind related bonuses benefits  contributions remuneration
WMWK REIIME 0 EURRRE BikE
R MR il it 3 Bk B A

HK$°000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#xz T#xz T#x Tz

2008 ZEE)\E
Executive directors: WS
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung 8y s 2,799 2,500 127 12 5,438
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai i 2,381 2,000 1,270 12 5,663
M. Li Chi Pong ik 1,029 910 1,270 51 3,260
6,209 5,410 2,667 75 14,361
Non-executive director: FBfTES
Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph 7 Hi Wi e A: 1,040 2,500 1,270 12 4,822
1,249 7,910 3,937 87 19,183
2007 “RELE
Executive directors: HiTES -
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung b iy e 2,500 2,500 - 12 5,012
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai i B e A 2,107 1,500 - 12 3,619
M. Li Chi Pong R 1,045 158 - 48 1,251
5,652 4,158 - 72 9,882
Non-executive director: FafrEF
Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph Pyl b 1,411 1,500 - 12 2,923
7,063 5,658 - 84 12,805
There was no arrangement under which a director AR 2 i) 3 B AR A BE YA AR AT 2 Bk
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during YA = T R b e ) R A A

the year (2007: Nil). A (TR LE: ) o
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9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. it HMIESR
The five highest paid employees during the year included AR B P T B v TR B B S U AL (2
four (2007: four) directors, details of whose remuneration FERALE UL FHF > B F AT
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration B b SCHEEES o B T —hL (R F B4R :
of the remaining one (2007: one) non-director, highest — L) J5 I T IR EE 2 R B S A 2
paid employee for the year are as follows: L E R
Group
3 L |
2008 2007
“EENE CERFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x TF#oc
Salaries, allowances and benefits e W REDR R
in kind 805 840
Discretionary performance related BRI B Z 9 S AE 4L
bonuses 200 -
Employee share option benefits i EL I 1B A i A1) = 5
Pension scheme contributions FEX Y Nl i (R 37 12
1,042 857
The remuneration of the remaining one (2007: one) non- AR R AL (CFFLE: —
director, highest paid employee for the year fell within ) Bem i m e # 5 2 8 B 2 & A F
the band of HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (2007: nil to 1,000,001 % 7€ %1,500,000% 7 (=2 F L
HK$1,000,000). 4 0 F L E 1,000,000 70 ) i o
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31 March 2008 ZFFNE=H=1—H
10. TAX 10. B
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BWMNERIMBREENETHBELZ
17.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits {5 B R A B R 17.5% (ZBE L4 -
arising in Hong Kong during the year. 17.5%) 1 Hi # 5 -
2008 2007
“ERN\E “RRLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x T#T
Group ALEH
Current - Hong Kong B -
Charge for the year A 17,144 4,919
Overprovision in prior years VLA B i o 4 (143) (47)
Deferred (note 33) B (Hfit33) 407 1,042
Total tax charge for the year AR BRI 3 Hh AR 17,408 5,914
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit T P 925 08 B R S e B R ) 2 B
before tax using the statutory rate to the tax expense at T bR 3 BRI P B B R T S 2 BLIE B S
the effective tax rate is as follows: HEFEWNT :
Group
AR
2008 2007
“ERN\E “RRLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x T#r
Profit before tax BB Al Al 93,506 43,054
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory BB EEREITS% (ZRR L4
tax rate of 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) 17.5%) st H 2 B 16,364 7,534
Adjustments in respect of TR A 0 T S A0 ) o A
current tax of previous periods (143) (47)
Income not subject to tax Ui SN (1,573) (781)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR B % 2,171 857
Tax losses utilised from TR FEL A i 00 ¢ s 1
previous periods (18) (1,497)
Tax losses not recognised RERZ BB R 731 476
Others HAt (124) (628)

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate AR B B R At 2 B B 17,408 5,914
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31 March 2008

—RRNEZAZA—H

10. TAX (continued)

11.

12.

13.

There is no share of tax attributable to the Group’s
jointly-controlled entities during the year included in the

consolidated income statement (2007: Nil).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
of the parent for the year ended 31 March 2008
includes a profit of approximately HK$209,000 (2007:
HK$1,736,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 36(b)).

DIVIDENDS
The directors do not recommend the payment of any

dividend in respect of the year (2007: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as
used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Be B (A1)
AAE BE N > Sl JHE A S I 23 A 3t ] 4% i)
TR B B AR RN (2R
LA ) -

B2 v B 2 7 AN HEAY it A

NEREFZZNE=ZHA=+—HILEE
s By E)RE 25 R ON AN A R oo
5209,000% 7 (ZFF L4 : 1,736,000%
JC) W A O A 2 B B R R (B RE
36(b)) °

JBe .
EHEAE A EIRBILMTB L (ZFF
LA ) -

B2 w3 0 B A AN A 1 B 4
A

o B i A 78R T A A A R O ) I
i 15 A N AL i A a5 o 3R AE BN %
A7 38 e = T A 34 W 5

o JB i 2R T AR R A AR R R O ] I R
a8 FF AN A i A SR BB IR BT ER
T 908 I o HE - 3% S o RO R AR 7 R
WERR PR B AEE R C B AT @B WE - Y
B ABL e B A7 FL AT T8 A 0 280 4 3 JBe 4
A AT B DA Sl 2 0 3 JBE T 4% AC R AT
V18 5 70 J 1 B - 34 9 o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2008 Z=FFENFE=ZH=—1—H
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. B ) X dm bS5 A A EAL I &
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE (&)
PARENT (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share

CYE NS SRR IDEES I € i)

are based on: (=
2008 2007
RN “RFALE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x T#7r
Earnings #A
Profit attributable to ordinary equity RS I A e 2 )
holders of the parent, used in the basic iR Y A R 24 v 5 J R 1
and diluted earnings per share calculation T NREAG i 76,098 37,140
Number of shares
JBetr ¥ H
2008 2007
“EFNE “EFFLE
Shares JBe By
Weighted average number of RN & YNGR
ordinary shares in issue during Fiv bR P B4 S
the year used in the basic OB K
earnings per share calculation JNRE-SF- ¥4 B 1,174,810,330 940,758,000
Effect of dilution: WarE
Share options Ji e e 7,063,595 171,217
Weighted average number 578 M T AR - 4 8
of ordinary shares (diluted) (#) 1,181,873,925 940,935,217

11
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31 March 2008 ZFEFNE=ZH=+—H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Po3E - BEAS B i i
Group
A AR
Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and  and office Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
B
ik B&  HERER
S E S Rt AR i At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T T#r T#r T#x T#x T#r
2008 “ERNE
At 31 March and REZZRLE=Z=1—H
1 April 2007: KNA—H :
Cost JRA 5175 6,056 37133 11,935 5,389 32,288
Accumulated depreciation B M KW
and impairment (1,294) (2,529) (2,751) (9,572) (3,938) (20,084)
Net carrying amount i 3,881 3,521 082 2,363 1,451 12,204

Net carrying amount at REFFLENA—H

1 April 2007 T 3,881 3,521 982 2,363 1,451 12,204
Additions WE - 19 315 1,257 1,547 3,138
Acquisitions (note 37) Wk (W7E37) 6,310 - - - - 6,310
Depreciation provided FERTE

during the year (166) (884) (396) (1,023) (1,218) (3,687)

Net carrying amount at REZZFZNE=ZR=1—H
31 March 2008 IR 10,025 2,662 901 2,597 1,780 17,965

At 31 March 2008: BREBENEZA=—H ¢

Cost JA 10,290 4,426 3,887 8,629 6,548 33,780
Accumulated depreciation B4 % K WA

and impairment (265) (1,764) (2,986) (6,032) (4,768) (15,815)
Net carrying amount Y ¥ 10,025 2,662 901 2,597 1,780 17,965
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(continued)
Group

¥ 3. |

2007

At 31 March and
1 April 2006:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

Net carrying amount

Net carrying amount
at 1 April 2006
Additions
Transfer from investment
properties (note 16)
Disposals
Write-off during the year
Depreciation provided
during the year

Net carrying amount at
31 March 2007

At 31 March 2007:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

Net carrying amount

“ERLE

REZFFNEZA=A—H

KMA—H
Bk
Rt R

TR

REZRAENA—H
Z T FHE

e

HAREmHE
(Witis)

&

A BE P B

R

REFFLE=A=1-H

Z T

RoBREESAS T

Bk
e R

I

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2008

— S

—F%/

14. Yook ~ BN B il (50)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yo 5 e Wi ik

(F=H="1—H

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and  and office Motor

Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total

FfH ~

At B&  HeEER
L ST F S Rl WA i At
HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#r T#r T#r T# T#r T#r
15411 3,644 3,531 10,784 4121 38,097
(979) (1,591) (3,215) (8,897) (2,911) (17,593)
14,432 2,053 316 1,887 1,816 20,504
14,432 2,053 316 1,887 1,816 20,504
1,952 3,668 1,001 1,499 662 8,182
3979 - - - - 3,979
(16,167) (348) - - - (16,515)
- (685) - - - (685)
(315) (1,161) (335) (1,023) (1,027) (3,861)
3,881 3,521 982 2,363 1,451 12,204
5,175 6,056 3,133 11,935 5,389 32,288
(1,294) (2,529) (2,151) (9,572) (3,938) (20,084)
3,881 3,521 982 2,363 1451 12,204
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31 March 2008
14.

15.

16.

ZEFENFE=H=4+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

At 31 March 2008, the Group’s buildings with a net
book value of approximately HK$10,025,000 (2007:
HK$3,881,000) are pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 31).

At 31 March 2008 and 2007, the Group’s buildings are
situated on leasehold land in Hong Kong. Details of the
leasehold land are disclosed in note 17 to the financial

statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
At 31 March 2008 and 2007, all of the Group’s properties
held for development are pledged to secure certain bank

loans and general banking facilities of the Group (note

31).

The leasehold land included in properties held for
development is situated in Hong Kong and is held under

long term leases.

14. Yook ~ BN B il (50)

15.

N oRENE=ZH=Z+—H > KEHE
TH B {H £110,025,000% ¢ (=& & L 4E -
3,881,000 70 ) My HEF DR > fE R T
AR A B — R ERAT L R 9 R (B3 ) o

REFRNERZZLE=H=+—H >
A G5 B A A R A W R B b o AR A
5 R A ORS B S R M LT

HAEEERZDE
Ro-BBZNER_RZLEZHA=Z+—H >
FiEAREEMBEEREZHEH M
VLB A 45 [ 25 1 SR AT 8k B — I SR AT Rl
& (Pff5E31) o

55 5 35 A A B8 e 2 4 38 I AL b b o
B WARMBARA -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. B ¥EP %
Group
A 4R
2008 2007
“RENE EFLE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#7c T#or
Carrying amount at beginning of year A 4E4] i i 1 /& 412,810 518,790
Additions INE 455 2,113
Acquisitions (note 37) WekE (BEE37) 185,000 -
Transfer to owner-occupied property WA NWE (Kit14)
(note 14) = (3,979)
Transfer to prepaid land lease AT AT A B A Ak
payments (note 17) (MiE17) - (10,221)
Transfer to non-current assets MASBAFFAENEZ
classified as held for sale I B & A = (113,000)
Gain on fair value changes, net ANTEZ B » B 14,839 19,107
Carrying amount at end of year A 2 Vo MR G L 613,104 412,810




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s investment properties is as

follows:
Hong Kong: P g
Long leases RHIFLA
Medium term leases rh EIFH A
Elsewhere* At Hs [+
* At the balance sheet date, whilst the application is in progress,

the certificate of ownership with respect to one of the Group’s
investment properties with a carrying value of approximately
HK$2,444,000 (2007: HK$1,920,000) at 31 March 2008 had not

been issued by the relevant government authorities.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 March 2008 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers,

at HK$613,104,000 (2007: HK$412,810,000) on market

value, existing use basis.

SV e o Y ik

31 March 2008 ZZEFENE=ZH=4+—H

16. Bt &Y ¥ (&)

AL B AT
2008 2007
ZEFNE CFFLE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T-#C
260,360 260,000
350,300 150,890
610,660 410,890
2,444 1,920
613,104 412,810

o OREERAMER > R e TR e
JE B rp > A B BOR R R VR B A B AR SR
P b Heorp — R R R ) E=ZA =1
H 2 R T 5 %5 #02,444,0009 ¢ (—F % b
4 11,920,000) Z #8 ¥ W 3 1 B 7S it o

AREEBEYETIEB L HEEHFEKAMN
EMBERTARARZETMELBAH
EEREEA  REWER FFNFE=ZA
=+ —H ME M %613,104,0008 50 (=R
L4 1 412,810,000 8) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y 5 3 Y ke
31 March 2008 ZFEFENF=H=1—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. B % (4)

116

Certain of the Group’s investment properties are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further details
of which are included in note 39(a) to the financial
statements. The gross rental income received and
receivable by the Group and related expenses in respect

of these investment properties are summarised as follows:

Gross rental income WAL
Direct expenses HIEMZ
Net rental income HaBAF#H

At 31 March 2008, the Group’s investment properties
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$610,300,000
(2007: HK$410,550,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 31).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties

are included on page 12 to 15 of the annual report.

AR T 4G W S R AR LA T 5
= R B — 2P ORY B R R
#E39(a) o A% 55 M b 45 B 0 3 T MO K
M WA B 2 L < WA A AR A o S R
T

Group
i |
2008 2007
“ERNE FRFHLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x T#T
9,988 15,165
(1,106) (1,214)
8,882 13,951

N oFENE=ZA=Z+—H > KEHEE
T 48 %1610,300,0009 76 (=2 F L4 -
410,550,000% 7 ) 1y 4 & 4y 2 T W KA > 1
Ty 4% T ACHE W — S5 SR AT R A 9 DR (B RE
31) o

FRAREEMELEY ENE— B FE B
ERBI2EISH ©
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Y 5 3 B i
31 March 2008 ZFEFENFE=ZH=+—H
17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. FEAT 1 oo AL 125 A 3k 2
Group
A 4R 1
2008 2007
“EENE CEFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x TF#T
Carrying amount at beginning of year  F4EH] i # 1 {4 9,965 -
Transfer from investment properties HEHBREWE (Mitl6)

(note 16) = 10,221
Acquisitions (note 37) Wi (Ht37) 109,440 -
Amortised during the year ARAT- E i 87 (1,405) (256)
Carrying amount at end of year A 2 Vo MR G L 118,000 9,965
Current portion included in BRI - e K

prepayments, deposits and L At JE WK ) 8 B8l 3 43

other receivables (3,015) (256)
Non-current portion e B 114,985 9,709
At 31 March 2008, the Group’s prepaid land lease W oRRZNE=ZH=+—H > REEKE
payments are pledged to secure general banking facilities A FHL 6 A SR B SRR > DU R T AR SR
granted to the Group (note 31). P Ay — R SRAT 5 R (PR sE31) -

The leasehold lands are held under medium term leases ME LDl PSR H » HALRF

and are situated in Hong Kong. o



118

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUA B ik o B ik

31 March 2008 ZFENE=ZH=1—H

18. GOODWILL
The amount of the goodwill capitalised as an asset in the
consolidated balance sheet, arising from the acquisition
of minority interests of certain subsidiaries after 1 April
2001 is as follows:

At beginning and end of year: AR AR
Cost B
Accumulated impairment Bt fE
Net carrying amount M T - E

There was no movement in goodwill during the year.

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial
statements, the Group applied the transitional provisions
of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in respect of
business combinations which occurred prior to 2001, to

remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated
goodwill reserve, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to 1 April 2001, was approximately
HK$5,035,000 as at 1 April 2007 and 31 March 2008.

Such amount of goodwill is stated at its cost.

18. 7%

P FE AR A H AR O TR
28wl Z A0 W HRORE 25 T A Ak AR L
BEAAE T 3 6 R RO T A ORI
mE

Group

A 4 1
2008 2007
“RFNE  CFRHLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#T
14,717 14,717
(14,717) (14,717)

TAAEEFEN > TR A ) o

I B 5 R M 24P — D R ARHR
P R P 7 v B 5 e o i A 5 3 90 1 208 9 e R
A HWF R ZRFEIMBRAENEES
OF A TR T 073 5 B A o R R IR o

NoBFLEMA—HEZEZ)NE=ZA
Z=F—H > RZREFENUH—H i RE
WoF 5 2~ i) Fr i A G A3 R AE A R AR A Y
T 22 4 40 455,035,00098 TG o A B T2 4
BG4 ARG
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Yo 5 2 B ik
31 March 2008 ZZEFENE=ZH=4+—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. BB A 7] 2 B

Company
Al

2008 2007
ZRENE R LHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#x BN
Unlisted shares, at cost b A » RIFEAE 64,147 64,147
Due from subsidiaries Ff} &8 A Wl Rk 213,396 100,461
277,543 164,608

FhF Jag 2> 1 SR T S KA~ S 8 T B I A R

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from B )i 2 B R ki R T B A A SR -
subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

F MG~ ERT

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation of issued and equity attributable
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
3172 A o R A2 ) KA
W 388 8] R B AR i HL JBCHE v b XS
Direct  Indirect
Hk I
Profit Chain Investments British Virgin US$70,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited (“Profit Chain”) [slands/ Ordinary BERR
Hong Kong 70,0003% 7T
RGBS iyl
W
Able Engineering Company Hong Kong HK$3,789,000 - 100 Building construction,
Limited Fiai3 Ordinary maintenance and civil
TR TRARA T HK$11,211,000 engineering works
Non-voting MR
deferred (Note) HA Y
3,789,000% ¢ +ATH
iyl
11,211,000¥ 75
e R R A it

(Hit)
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31 March 2008 Z=FEZFE/NE=ZH=1—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

4

Gold Vantage Limited
BLEAWAF

Excel Engineering Company
Limited

it TRA R A

Gadelly Construction Company

Limited

IR A RA R

Able Contractors Limited

ZREEHRAT

Able Maintenance Company

Limited

ZRAEBHRAT

Covalla Limited

SiAA R4

Excelskill Limited (“Excelskill”)

KAERAR ( T5RE] )

Place of
incorporation

and operations
[iRL) A
3:8:2.%

Hong Kong
ik

Hong Kong
(R

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
(R

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
(R

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up capital
oI R

B0 B AR i 4

HK$100
Ordinary
10078

W

HK$13,000,000
Ordinary
13,000,000¥7C
=gl

HK$3,700,000
Ordinary
3,700,000% 70
WIm R

HK$10,000
Ordinary
10,000% 75
=gl

HK$10,000
Ordinary
10,000% 75
W

HK$10,000
Ordinary
10,000% 70
W

HK$1 Ordinary
7T
=yl

19. 77 B )& 2 W) Z B 4 (45)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
A7) A
JBc v By be

Direct  Indirect

H# E

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal activities

B2 3

Property holding
WERH

Building construction,
maintenance and civil

engineering works

[ S
Hefs
TAIH

Construction and

plant hiring
HETHRRE
BEb

Building construction

MR

Building construction

and maintenance works

MR &
A TR

Property development

B3

Property holding
B E]



121

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yo 5 2 B ik
31 March 2008 ZZEFENE=ZH=4+—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RBHE A 7l 2 M (&)

Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation of issued and equity attributable
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
iR A CHT R A2 v A
£ 3:%:2.% B0 R B i JB v By be EV-=371
Direct  Indirect
Hi% LEES
Good Trader Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Property development
(“Good Trader”) s 170 B R
EEAMRAF (] W i it
Great Business Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Property holding
FREARAH B RS WERH
bigile
Jeva Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Property holding
i A7 PR ] iRl T WERH
iyl
Comfort Home Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Property development
ZHEEFEARA HE T IS
W
Win Glories Limited Hong Kong ~ HK$9,600 Ordinary - 100 Property holding
AaAIRA W il 9,600% 7t ESEEC]
iyl
Hobol Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 Ordinary - 100 Property holding
THARAH PRl T WERH
iyl
Win Extra Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property holding
(“Win Extra”) s Ordinary B ZL ]
s BT (N5 ]) 10,0009 7t
iyl
Frason Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property holding
(“Frason”) s Ordinary B ZH ]
R £ 4 B R ) (DA ) 10,0009 72
W

Note: The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of
the company or to participate in any distribution on winding-up.

+ S 45 S5 A OO T I S R OO IO S > I

HE B4 B A R AT ] B K & 08 A
R SR BB s B A A

PHAEAT 439K -
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31 March 2008 ZFENE=ZH=1—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

19. 77 B )& 2\ Z B 4 (45)
B AT R T B AR R SE A R
R A A A R R R A 2 AR A
) B A ] o R A o B M At Y A
AlZ BRI SR E R IUR -

20. Jit 3t [ ¥ ) B i =2 B A

Group
3 L |
2008 2007
“EENE CERFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x TF#oc
Share of net assets JRE A 8 A = -
Due from jointly-controlled entities JARE WA ] 2 o) ‘B ok T 1,830 120

The amounts due from jointly-controlled entities are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as follows:

T Wi 3 (] 42 o K EL U JE KA~ e B
306 9 A 2R K] o

R pEHEEZERmT

Percentage of

BiAli v Ay e
Business Place of Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name structure registration interest power sharing activity
H R WEMHRE BARERE BB BRI BV 31
Excel-China Harbour Body Hong Kong 70 50 70 Engineering
Joint Venture unincorporate 3 contractor
i B 0f 1 TRRERH
W fy L 5
Able E&M Engineering Limited Hong Kong 50 50 50 Engineering
Limited company s contractor
ZEE TR HIRAH THEABRE
H AT



20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED

ENTITIES (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities:

Share of the jointly-controlled
entities’ assets and liabilities:
Current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Share of the jointly-controlled

entities’ results:

Revenue

Other income

Total revenue

Total expenses

Profit after tax

g3 Al 3 [ 42 il LAY

HREAM
B E
B AR

R THE

Al 3 ) 7 )

i

KA
H A A

BN
AP

BB T
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SV e o Y ik

31 March 2008 ZZEFENE=ZH=4+—H

20. 3% I ¢ R 2 B 4 (%69)

A R A 45 1 e AR 25 Y 3 TR 4 O

11 1B 22 S 5 Y

2008 2007
“RENE CFFUF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T#T
11,078 10,608
(11,078) (10,608)
60,728 8,879
2,983 1,391
63,711 10,270
(63,711) (10,270)
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31 March 2008 Z=FEZFE/NE=ZH=1—H

21.

22.

23.

CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION AND 21. Bt - I R Kb TREL
OTHER CONTRACTS
Group
A 4R 1
2008 2007
“EENE CEFLE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#7x TF#T
Gross amount due from customers FEW R P 2 & K TR
for contract work skl 267,744 157,391
Gross amount due to customers WA % P Z & 5 T
for contract work Haw (69,335) (44,133)
198,409 113,258
Contract costs incurred plus B A A B IRE e iR = i A
recognised profits less recognised B IR TR Z e 1
losses to date 4,194,451 2,476,657
Less: Progress billings Vs A R BRI (3,996,042) (2,363,399)
198,409 113,258
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22. R E
The Group’s properties under development as at 31 NoRRNERFFLE=ZA=Z+—H
March 2008 and 2007 are expected to be recovered after AEE B B R v S T A - &
more than twelve months. Bl o
The Group’s properties under development are situated in AREEMBERPYEMRFE - HPL P
Hong Kong and are held under medium term leases. MEERFSH -
PROPERTY HELD FOR SALE 23. AR EZWE
At 31 March 2008, the Group’s property held for sale is RZRFZNFE=EZH=Z1—H > REERA
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the B 2 ¥ 3 ORI > DU T AR 4R
Group (note 31). ]y — R R AT £ R R (FFRE31) o
The Group’s property held for sale is situated in Hong A SR R A A A 2 W AR A U - DA
Kong and is held under a long term lease. RUIMEEXFH -
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consists of receivables from contract
work and rentals under operating leases. The payment
terms of contract work are stipulated in the relevant
contracts. Rentals are normally payable in advance.

Accounts receivable JFEE WAL B 3k
Less: Allowance for individual

impairment

At 31 March 2008, retentions receivable included
in accounts receivable amounted to approximately

HK$104,017,000 (2007: HK$75,582,000).

Accounts receivable that is determined to be individually
impaired as at 31 March 2008 and 2007 relates to one
customer who has delayed payments and the management
assessed that only a portion of the receivable may be
recovered. The Group does not hold collateral over this
balance.

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable, net of
allowance, as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Current — 3 months BP A — 34/ H
4 — 6 months 4—06ff A
Over 6 months o A

W AR

31 March 2008 ZZEFENE=ZH=4+—H

24. HEWOR 3

BURRRBFHEAH IR EMEHEZ
WE WK » 5 49 TR 2 AT Wk A B
AP AT o M AR IR AT

Group

3 .|
2008 2007
“ERNE CFRFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#T
240,305 194,447
(488) (1,688)
239,817 192,759

N _ERNEZHA=Z+—H > BERD
A, $5 ME W R B K JE 40 %5 104,017,000 08 (=
FE-BLA 75,582,000 75C) ©

PERENER ZFRFLE=ZA=1+—H >
e I8 31 Dol AL W R R K T A BRI 9 A K
W% R T PR RE Al > JRE W IR 4 HE
Wk T o AR S I SIS0 R A B A AT A 4K
i fh o

&5 5 H Z EWOHR K (T B ) A9 HR
SHWT

Group

7 4 1
2008 2007
“RENE FRFHLE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#r
236,619 141,785
527 14,381
2,671 36,593
239,817 192,759

125



126

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2008 ZFENE=ZH=1—H

24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)
Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
considers that the recovery of an amount is remote, in
which case an impairment loss is recognised by directly
writing down the carrying amount of the accounts
receivable.

Movements in the allowance for impairment are as

follows:

Beginning of year AEH)
Impairment loss recognised T 0 k£ M 4
Impairment loss reversed DAY EiE 3]
End of year G

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivables that are
past due but not impaired are as follows:

Past due but not impaired: 760 J914EL 3 S ek A -
One to three months past due A1 E3E A
Four to six months past due 42 6fE A
Over six months past due 761 1 8 28 o flEl H

Neither past due nor impaired U 41 76 19 71 06 kAL

24. MEWCR 3k (A1)

A o] I AR K 8 9 AL 4R 73 8 P A R i
Bk > BRI A G2 I WA I K I I A T ARG
S AR ol i o AE % DL o W s 1R R R
Ll M R M T L B i R

WAEERE R E R

Group

AR
2008 2007
ZREBNE SRR LH
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T
1,688 -
= 1,688
(1,200) -
488 1,688

A% i 3 L SIS Dk L P9 R Lk TR B 2 AT

mr

Group

A 4 1
2008 2007
“FRNEE CFRFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#C
6,045 1,140
1,584 1,125
1,200 -
8,829 2,265
230,988 190,494
239,817 192,759




24.

25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no allowance for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not

hold collaterals over these balances.

Accounts receivable that are neither past due nor
impaired relate to a number of independent customers

who have no recent history of default.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Yo 5 3 Y ke
31 March 2008 ZEENF=H=4+—H
24. HEBOR X (4)

AL ST S DR A R BB kS A B T
ST s A B AR T 38 G RO Bk LT o
WEDAERE s KAREFRL » Z54
i 06 2E R B R AG KA o B R A VBRI
T TR W0 sE o HLAS AR R s WY A Ol el A B
Bk o A K ] W JE k5% 4 A AR R AR AT G

EEET

L 28 76 191 715 288 Dok AL P9 JE W0k T B s U &
VR S % R B > AP S Sl A T R AR % o

25. TAT KB ~ 44 B I b HE ok

Group Company
L | Y |
2008 2007 2008 2007

—BBMNE —BBLE —RBNE —2TLE
HK$’000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
T# Fi#or T# T

Prepayments AT SKIH 17,857 17,859 - -

Deposits and other i Je Fop
receivables JRE WK 19,035 48,362 = 11
36,892 66,221 - 11

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate

to receivables for which there was no recent history of

default.

Tl A B 08 3 30T 5 B AR o bt &% % B
0 5 1 <2 TS A % A I Sl 2R 2 T R AR Bk
P JE WAk I
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SUA B ik o B ik

31 March 2008 Z=FEZFE/NE=ZH=1—H

26. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Pledged deposits
Bank balance pledged against
banking facilities

Time deposits pledged against:

— bank overdraft facilities

— other bank facilities

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances
Non-pledged time deposits

TG
AT R U
BATHEH

Py DU AR A9 0 A

- BATBIH
- R BT R

REeRBEFEY
Bl R BAT R R
BEHEAN A

26. CHEHIAE K B Bl R Bl AW

Group Company
ARH AT

2008 2007 2008 2007
SRRME CERUE AR CRTLE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#T T#r T#IT
1,612 - - _
1,072 2,101 - -
3,351 6,344 - 4,155
6,035 8,445 - 4,155
60,351 44,541 410 214
23,451 5,009 - -
83,802 49,550 410 214

The time deposits pledged to banks were to secure general

banking facilities granted to the Group (note 31).

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on

daily bank deposits rates. Short term time deposits are

made for varying periods of between one day and three

months depending on the immediate cash requirements

of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short

term time deposits rates. The bank balances and pledged

deposits are deposited with banks with high credit ratings

and no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of

the cash and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits

approximate to their fair values.

SE WA AR AR T T SRAT o AR S A SR
B RAT L 2 AR (MHaE3L) -

AT B AR R H BT A AR N R A
T ) R 3 e A UG = 0 S 0 A sk Y S0
AR > H—REZMAARE > WP ALEH
F B B o A AR 4% O I
Ak P R e A B o SRAT &5 B S RN
R %A AR I S 2 ) 2K BRE B RY ~ f H RE
B RAT o Bl KRB FEMEY K OHKMT
A U TG i S O SP A H ©



217.

28.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

On 6 February 2007, Excelskill, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
preliminary sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of certain investment
properties located in Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, for
a consideration of HK$113,000,000. The transaction
was completed in May 2007. The aforesaid investment
properties with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$113,000,000 were classified as non-current assets
held for sale on the face of the consolidated balance sheet

as at 31 March 2007.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the

balance sheet date is as follows:

Current — 3 months B3 — 348 H
4 — 6 months 4—06fF A
Over 6 months i oefE A

At 31 March 2008, retentions payable included in
accounts payable under current liabilities amounted to

approximately HK$54,079,000 (2007: HK$40,123,000).

Included in the accounts payable are trade payables of
approximately HK$181,000 (2007: HK$181,000) due
to related parties who are family members of a director
of the Company, which are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing. The payment
terms are stipulated in the relevant contracts.

217.

28.

Yo 5 2 B ik
31 March 2008 ZZEFENE=ZH=4+—H

o WL F A1 A i 4 2 U ) ¥

MR LFEZANE > RAHE— KM #
2 B > ) SR D BB S SR = T A 2B
B E 1wk o DAL AL A B A T
WEWE > A BAREA%113,000,000#5C
ARG ORR_BREFLELABE - L
Ja 43¢ 5 gy S MR i A 3 %% 113,000,000 76 »
o RRLEZA=Z21HWEABEESA
HERACHFAFAEREZ R E E -

HE 10
RS H Z A R R B T T

Group

A 4 1
2008 2007
“EENGE CERLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#T
186,761 203,964
15,244 24,482
49,393 33,924
251,398 262,370

WN_BZRNFEZHA=+—H - FERBA
125 F 2 M AT IR kb A R B A A
54,079,000% 76 (Z&FZF L4 : 40,123,000%
JB) e

T A B R 0 2 A R T A S AR
AT EE KRB Z R £1181,000
Wt (ZFZ-L ¢ 181,000 J5) 77 MEHEH
B I8 B I [ 5 SR K o

W ASF MRk 2 S it LG o A R RO A B A
T e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUA B ik o B ik

31 March 2008 —ZFEFNE=H=4+—H
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 20. ffi 4 W T H

29.

30.

The Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts
to manage its interest rate exposures which did not
meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The aggregate
notional amount of the outstanding interest rate swap
contracts as at 31 March 2008 was HK$150,000,000
(2007: HK$150,000,000). Gain on changes in the fair
value of the interest rate swap contracts amounting to

approximately HK$240,000 (2007: HK$1,432,000) was

AR TR LA R B A A > DU B
S0 R 2 A B > R B A A R B B
i v g SR R R )NEZS
H=Z=+—H CHHAAMREHAELHNHE
4 A 6 %150,000,0008 70 (B F L4 -
150,000,000# 78) o Fl Z 43 1 & 40 0 A T
A B W 25 B B K9240,0008 00 (B F L4 -
1,432,000% 70) » T AAE BE 1 WK 25 3% 79 e

recognised in the income statement for the year. o
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30. Hofl HEAF 2k B TR B
Group Company
L | Y /|
2008 2007 2008 2007
“ERNE CRFLE CEFANE FFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T T#x T#or
Other payables o Ath A 3 7,953 6,114 213 1,740
Accruals itk diil 2,773 3,513 - 15
10,726 9,627 213 1,755

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are expected
to be settled within one year.

FoAt BE AR A EL B o S FIAE — 4R B



BORROWINGS
Group
AL M

Current

Finance lease payable at
fixed interest rate
(note 32)

Bank overdrafts — secured
and at floating interest
rates

Bank loans — secured and

at floating interest rates

Non-current
Bank loans — secured and

at floating interest rates

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

i)

ol L 65 A O
32 ] 52 5 HLA B
(WfiE32)

BRATIE 3 — A 4G %
R IR R
EE i),

BRAT B3 — A 4G %
VR B R HA R

i
SRAT BEK — A K 3k
e I ES R )

31.

Effective
interest rate

RS
(%)
(%)

1.34 - 7.25

2.69 - 7.25

2.72 - 6.39

W 5 i 3R B ik
31 March 2008 ZFEFNF=H=1—H
wh B BT B Al A

Effective

2008 interest rate 2007

“REN\E HEME —FRLE

HK$’000 (%) HK$’000

T (%) T#T

= 2.90 29

3,571 6.25-8.25 21,832

185,015 4.89 -8.75 283,697

188,586 305,558

503,976 4.64 -5.40 255,015

692,562 560,573
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31 March 2008

— B

_FF/

(E=H=1—H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. 5 B 84T R H b A% 5% (48)
BORROWINGS (continued)
2008 2007
“RFNE  FRHLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#T
Analysed into: M E
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: BAITERBIEX » BB ¢
Within one year or on demand —AE Y BRI B R AR 188,586 305,529
In the second year AR 120,193 12,321
In the third to fifth years, BEEEERAE
inclusive (B5HE W) 71,458 39,090
Beyond five years HAED, | 312,325 203,604
692,562 560,544
Other borrowings repayable: HAbAE K > EHEBWMT -
Within one year —4EN - 29
692,562 560,573

The interest rates of the Group’s bank loans are primarily

repriced every month according to market rate changes.

The Group’s secured bank loans, overdrafts and other

banking facilities are secured by:

(i)

legal charges over the Group’s investment properties,
which had an aggregate carrying value at the
balance sheet date of approximately HK$610,300,000
(2007: HK$523,550,000);

legal charges over the Group’s buildings
and prepaid land lease payments, which had
carrying amounts at the balance sheet date
of approximately HK$10,025,000 (2007: HK$3,881,000)
and HK$118,000,000 (2007: HK$9,965,000)

respectively;

7 55 [ SRAT 5Kk i R R TR 9 T 4 A R A
5y i 4 1A H T A

A 55 A KA ERAT Bk - 7B 3 R A RAT
25 DA R S IE H AR LA

(i) JAAH B 48R W E £ 4610,300,0009
JC (B EF L4 523,550,000 78) 2
AR [ BB Py S W 5

(i) A< 45 A2 R FE A o AL A R
My a > AT H > U fH 4
Bl #1%510,025,0009 6 (B R L4
3,881,000% i) $118,000,000% G (=
FFE L4 1 9,965,000% 1) 5



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

(iii) legal charges over the Group’s properties held for
development, which had an aggregate carrying
value at the balance sheet date of approximately

HK$115,000,000 (2007: HK$115,586,000);

(iv) legal charges over the Group’s property held for
sale, which had a carrying value at the balance
sheet date of approximately HK$44,833,000 (2007:
HK$44,833,000);

(v) the pledge of certain of the Group’s cash and
bank balances and time deposits amounting to
approximately HK$6,035,000 (2007: HK$8,445,000)

at the balance sheet date; and

(vi) the assignment of the Group’s financial benefits
under certain contract works. Accounts
receivable under those contract works amounted
to approximately HK$167,760,000 (2007:
HK$122,241,000) as at 31 March 2008.

In addition, the Company has provided corporate
guarantees against certain of the Group’s
banking facilities to the extent of approximately
HK$1,369,704,000 (2007: HK$1,099,667,000) as at 31
March 2008 (note 38(a)).

All of the above bank and other borrowings of the Group
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s bank and other borrowings approximate to

their fair values.

SV e o Y ik

31 March 2008 ZZEFENE=ZH=4+—H

31. Wl B BT B e A K (7))

(iii) &5 F B 48 M E 40 % 115,000,000%
JC (B F L4 1 115,586,000% 78)
AEBMPEE TR ZYENDENTT

(iv) B &5 5% H W i 4 49 %544,833,0008 7
(= FF-B4E 1 44,833,000% 7C) A4
HREEREZ YRS EWT

(v) WESH 24 %6,035,0008 0 (ZF
E B4R 1 8,445,000 5T) 2 AL H T
B4 M BRAT 505 DA I I A AR R 5
K

(vi) BBEARALEEA THEETRAHZ
MHEMNE R _FFNE=ZA=1—
H o H B % 5 58 TR A 40 9 HE IR
K B #167,760,0008 6 (—F &b
4E 1 122,241,000 78) ©

A REERBNE=ZA=Z+—H > AATH
o AR AR T T SR AT A B BE 49 1,369,704,000
Wwot (ZFF L4 1,099,667,000% i) Z
AEER (M 3E38(a)) ©

A G T A bt SR AT B LAt A 3k ¥ DL T
Ay BLAL o

R o A5 B AT T 3L Al £ K A R T
i BEIL AP AR -

133



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2008 ZFEFNE=ZH=+—H

32. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLE
The Group leased a motor vehicle for its construction
business. The lease was classified as a finance lease
and the lease term expired in the current year (2007:

remaining lease term of one year).
At 31 March 2007, the total future minimum lease

payments under the finance lease and their present values

were as follows:

Group

32. i VAL IS ME A K R

ALHE IR EEHEHERER - LHEC
43 A LR A O AR AR
W (SR MBI 4 -

PERFLF=ZA=Z+—H o REREM
5 2B AR 2 S A 2 5 I AL B A sk AR S
HEMEWT :

Present value of

7 4 1

Amounts payable: A XA Z I
Within one year —4ER
In the second year A
Total minimum finance T {1l AL
lease payments 3K 483
Future finance charges % 24 A 75 ¢
Total net finance lease il L Ak
payable A
Portion classified as T2 A it B A A
current liabilities (note 31) A (Hf7t31)
Non-current portion (note 31) e B R4 (M E31)

134

Minimum minimum lease
lease payments payments
B A AL 1% I5c A AL 15 4
Ak B &2 BUE
2007 2007
—EE LA —EE L
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#T T#c
32 29
32 29

(3)

29
(29)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y 5 3 B i
31 March 2008 ZFEENFE=ZH=+—H
33. DEFERRED TAX 33, ¥E 6t B
The components of net deferred tax (assets)/liabilities AR BE AR A AR R AR P R R
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the R (&) /AR RSB T -
movements during the year are as follows:
Group
A4
Depreciation Losses available
allowance in for offset
excess of related Revaluation  against future
depreciation  of properties  taxable profit Total
ik LEiT i
HIBHT# HE R Bt e A
il B LRMT7ES ZEH HH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T#T T#IT T#T
At 1 April 2006 REZRFEAENA—H 1,072 13,408 (910) 13,570
Deferred tax charged/(credited) — PM4EERAIA, GHA)
to the income statement W 2 R A A
during the year (note 10) (MfiE10) 978 2,566 (2,502) 1,042
At 31 March 2007 RE-ZZEEZA=1—H
and 1 April 2007 ;ZFFLENA—H 2,050 15,974 (3,412) 14,612
Acquisitions (note 37) Wk (M iE37) - 18,750 - 18,750
Deferred tax charged/(credited) — P4EERAA, GHA)
to the income statement W 2 R A
during the year (note 10) (Hf#t10) 520 425 (538) 407

At 31 March 2008 REZENEZHA=1+—H 2,570 35,149 (3,950) 33,769
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2008 ZFEFNFE=ZH=1—H
33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

There was no movement in the deferred tax assets and
liabilities of the Company during the year (2007: Nil).

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$27,884,000. Subject to the
final assessment of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department, these tax losses are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$22,571,000 of
such losses. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of the remaining amount of approximately
HK$5,313,000 as it is not considered probable that there
would be sufficient future taxable profits to utilise such

amount.

At 31 March 2008, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability for taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries or joint ventures as the Group has no liability

to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

33. A BLIHE (4)

A AR A > A 4y ] A JE AL A e R
0 5 B (R LA ) -

AEBEETEEELEZIHEEBRIY S
27,884,000k JC  f§ & ¥ BL B 7 o 12 5 Bt
% > B %5 B R 18 T Bt A BRI K 8 R %
BHEBBRZ AR ZRRERBER - KA
Al T % 4 0 10 £922,571,000 8 J6 e 32 8 1
BIEERE - IR AARKWRRRKE R
00 JRE SRR R T DL B A% A o WO S R K
#15,313,000% 70 e 572 3% 4L BT & 7 o

RoRFBNEZAZT—H  REEHE
O R B A7 8 A 3 2 AR SR R AT A
VA 4 24 R O A il R O i B O £ o PRI A
% S5 TR A o A A A L A A 0 B R
Fifig

A 2 1) TR RS A B B A i A
"R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y 75 R Bk
31 March 2008  ZFENFE=H=1+—H
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
Shares JB £y
2008 2007
“EENE ZFRLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#r TF#r
Authorised: WA
4,000,000,000 (2007: 4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,000/1%
ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each ZEER LA 4,000,000,000/)
g B H0.025 ¥ 70 Z 3% 8 it 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: CEHAT RBUR AR -
1,485,285,600 (2007: 940,758,000) 1,485,285,600/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each (ZFF L4 1 940,758,000/%)
5 JB T E0.025 % 76 2 8 Ik 37,132 23,519

During the year, the movements in share capital were as

follows:

(a)

(b)

347,826,000 shares of HK$0.025 each were issued for
acquisitions, further details of which are set out in

note 37 to the financial statements.

On 29 October 2007, the Company completed a
private placement of 188,952,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.025 each to various independent
investors at a subscription price of HK$0.23 per

share, resulting in total cash proceeds, before

expenses, of HK$43,458,960.

The subscription rights attaching to 1,689,600
share options were exercised at the subscription
price of HK$0.4 per share and the subscription
rights attaching to 6,060,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.165 per
share, resulting in the issue of 7,749,600 shares of
HK$0.025 each for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$1,675,740.

AR AT T

(a)

(c)

347,826,000 %5 B T {60.025% 70 i it
o PR B T B AT o A B — 2 RS R
T S R B k3T o

WoRFLHETHZ1TILH s KAF
56 AL A L #£188,952,000/8% 4% Jik i 45
0.025W I Z Bt T A WL it &
H o R 5 B0.23W 00 » RIMBRE
FH ) S8 B3 42 T A5k JE 45 43,458,960 7T ©

Fi 772 1,689,60045 Jifk Ji - i 52 Wi HE
SREE 2049 T 1) 52 B A A7 B - g R
6,060,000 M 1Bt A - 10 520 I E i BR g
JB0.165 %5 JC 1y 2 i 15 47 > PH b 88 47
A5 Bk 1 i %50.025 98 o6 1Y B 47,749,600
B> RMBrBEHMBARESERMES
1,675,740% G ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008 =FFENE=ZH=1—H

34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 34, BeAS (48)
Shares (continued) e By (%)
A summary of the transactions during the year with AAEE b AR B A ] LB AT N A AR
reference to the above movements in the Company’s RSB BESR T ¢

issued ordinary share capital is as follows:

Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
[B%:Zi) 371 2% £} it 3
W¥H JBe A it B it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T ¥
At 1 April 2006 and QI Y3
1 April 2007 MH—H A
“RELE
MH—H 940,758,000 23,519 75,391 98,910
[ssue of shares as BT R E
consideration for B ()
acquisitions (a) 347,826,000 8,696 52,355 61,051
Private placement (b) FANECE (b) 188,952,000 4,724 38,735 43,459
Share options exercised (c) A PR () 7,749,600 193 1,482 1,675
544,527,600 13,613 92,572 106,185
Share issue expenses et 84 8 1 - - (1,069) (1,069)
Transfer from share Vi ot R
option reserve - - 510 510
At 31 March 2008 REZZNE
ZH=+—H 1,485,285,600 37,132 167,404 204,536
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. SHARE CAPITAL(continued)

Share options

(a)

(b)

On 16 February 2004, Winhale, the ultimate
holding company, sold 95,958,000 existing ordinary
shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.5 per
share to a number of independent investors (the
“Placees”), pursuant to the placing agreement
dated 10 February 2004 signed with a placing agent
(the “Placing Agent”). On 24 February 2004, the
Company allotted an aggregate of 95,958,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.5 per share
to Winhale pursuant to the top-up subscription
agreement entered into between the Company and
Winhale on the same date as the placing agreement.

In relation to the above allotment of shares, the
Company further entered into a deed of undertaking
dated 10 February 2004, whereby the Company
provided an undertaking to the Placing Agent that
it will, subject to certain regulatory conditions,
grant to each Placee an option to subscribe for one
further new share of the Company for every placing
share purchased from Winhale. During the year
ended 31 March 2005, an aggregate of 95,958,000
share options were granted to the Placees. The
share options are exercisable at an exercise price of
HK$0.8 per share within 36 months commencing
from the date of the relevant deed of the option. No
aforesaid share options were exercised during both
years presented. All of the share options lapsed on
24 February 2007.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme (other
than the share options granted to the Placees as
mentioned above) are included in note 35 to the

financial statements.

31 March 2008 ZZEFNE=H=4+—H

34, WA (%)
Ji I

(a)

MoFRZNEH+TAH > BEARL
Vi) Z I A& P B Bl Winhale B g & 1R
(TR ERAD R _FFWNE_H
T H %5 Z BB Wk 0 Winhaled% &
JO.5W T Iy A% - T TR R E
H(ARAND HERAFZBAHEE
J§95,958,000/) o A = REFWME A
Z+H > REARA R BWinhalef?
e B 1  H W — H 5T n 2 Al 2 R
T e o AR 2 W] 4 B JB0.5 W T I AR 1)
Winhale it 2§ A< A 7] 2 3 3% &8 )k A 3
95,958,000J8¢ °

F il i TR & N N/ e ==
WAEZH B #E— 5T L — AR
1 PRk > AR ] 1 G B AR B AR G AR
TR S8 AR > ) & AR N 3
Winhalefi A 2 & — B EC & & 4 4% H
— JBe AR 2\ B Ay 2 W R o R &
ZREHFEA=Z+T—HIEEERN >
A2 H] [ AR S $2 A 3£95,958,0004
i PR HE o AR TC N RT B A I R E B R
HWREZ =10 H R %473 H
19 JB0.8W T AT HE IR AE - R B HIZ W
i8] 45 B > WS AT 0 b At 2 e E o
AR ERR —EELEA
ZhME R -

A2 ) T HE Y ) 2 RE N O B L
Al i AR A% N A% 2 B B R ) T SO
B M a5 -

139



140

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUA B ik o B ik

31 March 2008 Z=FEZFE/NE=ZH=1—H
35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 5 August
2002, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
full-time employees, including any executive and non-
executive directors of the Group. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 8 September 2002 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in

force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue as at the date when the Share Option Scheme
was approved by the shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive,
officer or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

35. Jil JBe B it

MR T AR\ A T H s
AESE o Aoy ) JBE SR v PR A T ) (T
Je A 1) o

Ji SR AR ) 2 B R B A A G R
EZRpEHERRZ G ER28EHT M
HE RIS - MR Bl 2 FEAR 2 B E A
AL 2 W0EE RAT B E > AFE
T AT e JEBUAT A o 0 I B S B R %
FAEJUAINH A B TR T 8 B
T Ab > & wt &% A W% H R AR A B
Ry taE e

R 0 W L Wi R R R RE
B Z v B B > Ty — R AR AE B
K bR AR 2 ] R AL o R RE ST A 2 H
A A ) OB AT B AR R 10% 2 AR o AE AT
i - A 390 P PR R R AR o T e
REGH#) Z AL A B A% 2 B3R B TR AT
JBe A 2t v A B > DAAR A W] R B Z
CBAT R 1% 4 [ o (R e — S 8
7L I R ] 2 S R R 2 R RO B R K & I
et o
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JH R r IR AT L o b s AE
75 e 2 4 NN R 3 0 N N Y
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2N A I R > B AR A R R 2
B 47 B 430.1%3k 42 i /8 715,000,000 G
(R4 A 2y /) 42 th B 2 e 51 5) % »
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within seven days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the
offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but should not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant of the share options; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; or (iii) the nominal value of the
shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year.

31 March 2008 ZZEFNE=H=4+—H

35. Julk JBe Bl 3 (%69)

2 H 2 0 M bl TR 4 H ST G H N
B > MER S N JH AT B 1T Z AR o
¥ H 2 0 e M 2 A A ] P R RO
M % 90 R 2 A 0k HOJT > S 75 2 % D e e 42
Hy H AR Gt -4

Vil T e 2 AT B AR ol S R MR RO
THI=F 2w ()AL 7 B W I
2t H 3107 Wi 22 B 4 H 832 B 91 2 i
5 i) A2 ) B4 3% B % F 9 A
28 By H O W 22 P BT it =~ 3 Wi 48 5 i)
A2 ) e T AL o

S FBt AR S S TR AN A B S R T R
KR EREZZRER -

5 QG Tt B > A4 JBE T AR AT B A S JBEHE S
T
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2008 2007
“EENE “ERELE

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price of options
CREL i W DB Ay ifE Ji Jit HE
T - 35 9 M¥H  nRET 8 H
HK$ 000 HK$ 000

per share per share
IR 7 TH  #FRET Tt
At 1 April WHH—H 0.165 6,900 - -
Granted during the year  4EENIZT 0.400 30,722 0.165 6,900
Exercised during the year 4 AT 0.216 (7,750) - -
Lapsed during the year AR R B 0.165 (300) - -
At 31 March R=H=+—H 0.396 29,572 0.165 6,900

TP A A B P R AT B A T B AR R AT BE Y
TnARE - 32 JBE Ay (B A 240,21 6WETE ©

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was HK$0.216.
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31 March 2008 Z=FEZFE/NE=ZH=1—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 35.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the balance sheet date are as
follows:

Number of options

ik SR B ¥ H
2008 2007
ZER)N\4E ZERRLE
Granted to employees:
BYREE :
on 7 December 2006 540,000 6,900,000
RERBAETZALH
on 31 August 2007 1,998,000 -
N_RZFLFENAZ+—H
Granted to directors:
ByES:
on 31 August 2007 27,033,600 -
PRRFLENA=Z+—H
29,571,600 6,900,000

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment

in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during
the year was HK$4,619,000, approximately HK$0.15
each (2007: HK$292,000, approximately HK$0.04
each). The Group recognised a share option expense of
approximately HK$4,726,000 during the year ended 31
March 2008 (2007: HK$185,000).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used for
the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007:

Yk Je B ik ) (45)
TV UM H > G AR AT G0 I IR 1 T
TRATH I -

Exercise price

per share* Exercise period
Y ERgid sl 8
HK$ (dd/mm/yy)

T (H/A /)

0.165  07/06/2007 - 06/06/2012

0.400  03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012

0.400  03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012

R B e AT IR BT oK A 4 IR
8 4 301005 0 > A B 1 77 B S 5
e 47 8 -

A 4E BE BT % TR BB RE N A P R E R
4,619,000 JG (B3 #0.1580) (ZFF L
4R £ 292,000% 76 (5547 £10.04¥78) ) » A4E
MERE RRNANE=ZA=Z+—HILEE
Tt 2 %) i JE AR 2 P 40 44,726,000 8 (=&
Z-HB4E 1 185,000 TC) °

ACAE BEIR T 0 DARE 25 &5 54 0 Ji B E 1 2 oF
BB BRI TAR 0 58 — & 8 39 J 391 4 S R 6 X
EET H > A AT IS S B Y K
RgEfE > R A TRAIR TREZR
FNERZEFLHE=ZA=Z+—HILFE
LWL N3



35.

36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Date of grant (d/m/y)

35.

ByYAM (H/H/4)

Closing price on date of grant T BT
(HK$ per share) (€3 4% 5W)
Dividend yield (% per annum) B (%)
Expected volatility (% per annum) TR R (%)
Historical volatility (% per annum) JES P E R (%)
Risk-free interest rate (% per annum) e R B A (R 4F-%)
Expected life of options (year) T A T ST R (48)

The expected life of the options is based on the
assumption that the options will be exercised by the
employees during the first half of the option life. It is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

At 31 March 2008, 29,571,600 (2007: 6,900,000)
shares were issuable upon exercise of all share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 2.0% (2007: 0.7%) of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares
and the share premium account of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior
to the listing of the Company’s shares, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years remain in
consolidated goodwill reserve as explained in note 18
to the financial statements.

36.

31 March 2008 ZZEFNE=H=4+—H

Jile JB i it 20 (7)
2008 2007
“RENE RFLE
31/08/2007  07/12/2006
0.400 0.165
94.45 49.18
94.45 49.18
4.04 3.51
1 1.5

S P R V) TECHOD J00 R AR R R T O U
S0 B #7470 S B R s B 2 Y > B
VLI S e B A7 5 5 AR — s R R AR T g
H B0 A4 A7 8 B X o AT 95 B RO R R IR
e ) 3R B8 SR W R 2R SR B > (H IR R
TR BRAR -

wh B 2 F AR B > R 7% B8 B 3% 7 il B HE

N oRBANEZHA=Z+—H RS
T R AT U R M A AT AR
] N AT B B 29,571,600/ (—FE L
4 1 6,900,0008) » B AAFH H O BT
P #12.0% (ZFFELHE : 0.7%) °

fiti 4

(a) A4 14
A 4 [ 7 A4 B % AR BE 22 Aok Al ek R
Ll H o 2N A g ek -

A Z N R TR AR A A T Ry
TR 4 A G P R A N e A
R 2 B A TR B B A v R o BRy B2
B % 55 W A W) 2 B T B AT 2 A A
] B 3 JBe AT 2 2 o

T B ik A W RE LS A > A A A AR
W S JBg 2 ) T E AR T R R T K
WS A A A o
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WO 5 i A B
31 March 2008 Z=FEZFE/NE=ZH=1—H
36. RESERVES

36. fi flii (#8)

(b) Company (b) A2+
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
e Jo
ek SARR Gt REEA W
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Wit THT THT THT THT THT

At 1 April 2006 REBZAENA—H 75,391 63,948 - 205 141,591
Profit for the year XA - - - 1,736 1,736
Equity-settled share option DR A5

arrangements TR 4 4 35 - - 185 - 185
At 31 March 2007 and REBRLEZAZT-H

1 April 2007 kZZZLENA—H 75,391 63,948 185 3,988 143,512
Issue of shares B 34 92,572 - - - 92,572
Share issue expenses Rt 34 (1,069) - - - (1,069)
Transfer fed 510 - (510) - -
Profit for the year AR R - - - 209 209
Equity-settled share option DR A

arrangements T IRRE % 4 35 - - 4,116 - 4,116
At 31 March 2008 REZRNEZN=ZA—H 167,404 63,948 4,401 4197 239,950

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the fair value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company
may make distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payment transactions in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

NEZ AR TR A A F B Ay B
AR B8 A A A WO 2 MR A W
JBe A 22 2 T i A 30 2y A2 45 % 45 B i
O\ Z A i B AT 2 AR 4y =) B T
ZHERGr o MR EFE LN —EAH
B AAFRE THILT A#MAR
A% v MR SRAE 3R

S Je B fof 48l LR T - W R AT O AN
JBEHHE 2 O SF- AT M R > R A B B
2 A RE2. 435 DL 2 B B Y S A 22 5
st BOR R o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. ACQUISITIONS

On 26 October 2007, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, Profit Chain Investments Limited (“Profit
Chain”), completed the acquisitions (the “Acquisitions”)
of the entire issued share capital and shareholders’ loans
of Win Extra and Frason from Mr. Ngai Chun Hung
(“Mr. Ngai”, chairman of the board and a controlling
shareholder of the Company) and his controlled
company pursuant to a conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 28 August 2007 (the “Agreement”). The
consideration was settled in cash and by way of issue of
347,826,000 new ordinary shares of the Company. The
transaction constituted a connected transaction and very
substantial acquisition of the Company, details of which

are set out in the Company’s circular dated 21 September

2007.

The main assets of Win Extra comprise a block of
residential building at Pokfulam Road, Hong Kong which
the Group acquired for investment purposes.

The main assets of Frason comprise the properties which
have been occupied by the Group as its head office under

a tenancy agreement entered into between Frason and the

Group on 29 February 2000, as disclosed in note 40(a).

SV e o Y ik

31 March 2008 ZZEFNE=H=4+—H

37. Wk

RZRREFETHZHANHE - RBERZE
FLtHENHAZ+TNHIT LM ERSEEE
ik ([ tak]) » RA R Z 28 M E A
W Profit Chain Investments Limited ([ Profit
Chain ) 58 B B 4 e Je A (T8 84 » A
AF E R LR R BB ) B i
w) WO (MW D) sl RO 2 2 8 84T
BEA B BB - RAE DL B4 K dI AR A
B 17347,826,000/8¢ H7 ¥ i I JB 4y 32 A - ot
B L NN b SN E R N
W A ERAARAF ZFRELELA
Zh—HZEH -

L B Y B A — W L A 9 AR bk
FERTECE PN RN L YIS T PN (<
& -

R Py A L 35 A 8 R O £ B AR
FEPZFREAREZAZHIILHAT LM
B o e A1 2y L R = i A RO 3R GRERE R
W iE40(a) B2 8 -
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31 March 2008 ZFEFNFE=ZH=1—H
37. ACQUISITIONS (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

37. WOk (74)
RBREZZ)NE=ZA=Z+—HILEEN
W i > e T WA 2 T R LR IR

of Win Extra and Frason acquired during the year ended

146

31 March 2008 as at the date of Acquisitions were as i H B A ST ¢
follows:
Fair value
AV
Notes HK$’000
Property, plant and equipment W~ BEAS BORA 14 6,310
Investment properties RGP 16 185,000
Prepaid land lease payments TEAT - M AH 5 A R 17 109,440
Prepayments, deposits and other TR ~ 4248 T H At
receivables JRE Wk 630
Cash and cash equivalents B& R B %A 274
Tax payable JRE A BE I (84)
Other payables and accruals JU At JE A5 Ak B T 2 22 (910)
Interest-bearing bank loans AR ERIT B (156,000)
Deferred tax liabilities 9 S Aol I £ % 33 (18,750)
Loans from Mr. Ngai e R R A R (42,500)
Net assets acquired WKL S ) Y R 83,410
Acquisition of loans owed by Wi S o A5 TR A
Win Extra and Frason to Mr. Ngai B A M Bk 42,500
125,910
Satisfied by: AT
Cash B4 64,859
Shares of the Company A e Ay 61,051
125,910



37.

38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITIONS (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the Acquisitions is as follows: SATIE
HK$’000
F#oc
Cash consideration BlaRy 64,859
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Jt WAL B 4 T B 4 B (274)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents Be kB EF A i FH 64,585

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) At 31 March 2008, guarantees given to banks
in respect of performance bonds in favour of

contract customers by the Group amounted to

HK$133,717,000 (2007: HK$129,125,000).

At 31 March 2008, guarantees given to banks and
the amounts utilised in connection with banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries by the Company
were approximately HK$1,369,704,000 (2007:
HK$1,099,667,000) and HK$822,241,000 (2007:
HK$689,669,000) respectively.

(b) In the ordinary course of the Group’s construction
business, the Group has been subject to a number of
claims due to personal injuries suffered by employees
of the Group or the Group’s subcontractors in
accidents arising out of and in the course of their
employment. The directors are of the opinion that
such claims are well covered by insurance and would
not result in any material adverse impact on the
financial position or results and operations of the

Group.

(a)

31 March 2008

37. WOk (74)
B W B4 B A Sl 2 R

SV e o Y ik

B UV E

38. BAR 1

MN_FENEZH=1+—H > R&EH
BT ERNER P ZE AR5 T8
AT 5 OR s  40133,717,0008 00 (=%
F L4 1 129,125,000 0) o

R_RZEBFNE=ZH=+—H > KA¥
AT A ) Z W A ) Z AR AT S
HR BUAN1,369,704,0008 6 (= FE b
F 1 1,099,667,000% 76) 1 SR 47 1E t ¥
R A BB A R OB 3 R AT
5 B%H822,241,0008 70 (ZFF L4 -
689,669,000 7T) °

TEARLMZ HWREEBEBRED B
4 7 45 T A 5 T R O R 2 R E A %
1 301 1] 280 78 78 Ah DA B 52 455 1 1 A< 45 [
FAR o R R A B R A R R Bz
SZ ORI > HOR B R A AR
Z S TR 0 B3 A M A S R AT
EEPNCNTE A K
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WO 5 A B
31 March 2008 Z=FEZF/NE=ZH=1—H
39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
16 to the financial statements) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay rental

deposits.

At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as

follows:

Within one year —ER

In the second to fifth years, B OBEHE
inclusive (BFEERWAE)

After five years TR

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one

to three years.

At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year —4EN
In the second to fifth years, BEE A
inclusive (BFEHRBMA)

39. MEBMEZHE
(a) fEBHHAA
A4 AR 0 A0 R 22 B AL DL B
W (MBEREMTL) HEezHE
W — 4 B =4E - ML Rk — AL 2
P X AR 4 o

REFZNE=ZA=Z+—H KEH
R A T S B AL L T B 2 HAR

B Wi e A AL 5 Ak MR TAN F

Group

A 4 1
2008 2007
“RFNE  FRLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T
6,739 14,137
1,588 7,471
39 —
8,366 21,608

(b) fERARAA
AREEMREREMEZHEAME T I
EME -MEVEIHEZHMEH AN P—
B=AF o

RERFNFEZA=1—H o REEME
A T S A R T B 2 H AR R A

AR & A sk A T -
Group
AR
2008 2007
CRENE FFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#r For
1,997 5,199
1,914 5,026
3,911 10,225
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31 March 2008 ZZEFENE=ZH=4+—H
40. B )57 R 5

(a) 7 A B 7 i 3 A 38 0y i okt 2 3% 45

R 5 T AR AN > A ) R A 4R BE N R

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) In addition to those transactions and balances

disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the

Group had the following transactions with related SR ITET TR S
parties during the year:
Group
3 3L |
2008 2007
ZEBN\E ZRBLE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A T#7x T#C
Rental expense paid to R E AR A
Win Source Investment ([¥EHE]) =z
Limited (“Win Source”) e (i) 66 66
Rental expense paid to Frason 7% £ 8 Wt i b 4 i
before its acquisition by LS X A2
the Group 47 (ii) 2,100 3,300
Management income received PE e 25 v 1B v ¥
from Excel-China Harbour W8 W i 2 45 B
Joint Venture WA (iii) 2,180 180
Notes: i3
(i)  Mr. Ngai Chun Hung, a director of the Company, is also a (1) gﬁgffﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%%%%§§§
director of Win Source. The rental expense was determined ° b SURGEAL S
at a rate mutually agreed between the Group and Win E%ggg?ﬁ& S EATE -

Source by reference to the prevailing market rate.

(ii) On 28 February 2006, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with Frason for the lease of office premises for a
three-year term from 1 March 2006 to 28 February 2009 at
a monthly rental of HK$300,000, which was determined by
reference to the prevailing market rate. Before its acquisition
by the Group in October 2007 (see note 37), Frason had
been wholly-owned by Mr. Ngai Chun Hung.

(iii) The management income is determined by reference to the
costs incurred.

(it)

(iii)

W RBEANEZ ZNH > REH
B A5 AT 0 A B bk DA AR BT O O
Pro> B =4 B RRAE=H
AREZZZIEZA AR L
H #4300,0008 7G » 75 2 BUm AT i
M ERBE - FEARLEPN —FZL
A WO B A AT (R RE37) > B
AR M e 2 A -

BN TS 2 T B A AT B AE o
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31 March 2008 Z=FEZFE/NE=ZH=1—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BT R G (58)
(continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) 7% 45 B 32 45 BE A B 1% B 4%
Group
Group
A 4R 1
2008 2007
“EENE CEFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x F#oc
Short term employee benefits I B R A 21,008 16,979
Post-employment benefits A ok 12 4 196 156
Share-based payments VA JBe Ay 4% B B8 1) £+ 3k 4,319 5
Total compensation paid to key IMNTEREFEAR
management personnel B 4B 1 25,523 17,140

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.

A B B I G RO — 2P ARG o ORY B B

F MRS o

2007/2008



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
borrowings, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables, bank balances and deposits and derivative
financial instruments. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to the

financial statements.

The Group’s ordinary activities expose it to various
financial risks, including interest rate risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. Whilst the Group uses interest rate
swaps to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations of interest
rates, it does not use derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes. The risks associated with financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are described below. The management monitors
closely the Group’s exposures to financial risks to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt

obligations with floating interest rate.

To mitigate the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group
has entered into interest rate swaps, denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, with a bank which does not qualify
for hedge accounting (see note 29). The changes in
the fair value of the interest rate swaps would have an
insignificant effect on Group’s profit or other components
of equity exposure if the market interest rates at 31
March 2008 and 2007 had been 25 basis points higher or
lower with all other variables held constant.

SV e o Y ik

31 March 2008 ZZEFENE=ZH=4+—H

41. Y 5 e B 4% B H B B oK

AEEMFELBM T RAKMER  HH X
At WOk T~ B B At B A K BR
7 45 B Befe ok » DA AT A St T - A
W E TR R EM RN E
I B s P 9 %

A S TR i 2 R ) R 2 T B
B o 45 A 3 B~ A7 B R 9 38 e
B o A 4 B R R A R 4 000 40 20 Bl L T
35 ) 3 30 Bl A D B > L A 45 P SIS 4 A
Al TR R o A B AR TR
JE I VA % A R AR % 55 L B R BOSR > E T
SO o A5 PR R o B 48 A 45 1B T
S 2 T e o DA e R T I S A A M R IO
I o

e
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31 March 2008 Z=FEZFE/NE=ZH=1—H
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 March 2008, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 25 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately HK$1,428,000 (2007: HK$1,156,000),
arising as a result of higher/lower interest expenses on
the Group’s floating-rate borrowings. There would be no
impact on other components of the Group’s equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance date. For the purposes of the analysis, it
is assumed that the amount of variable-rate borrowings
outstanding at the balance date was outstanding
throughout the whole year. The 25 basis point increase
or decrease represents management assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual balance sheet date.

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
deposits, accounts and other receivables, and counter-
party financial obligations in derivative financial
instruments. The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure
at 31 March 2008 in the event of other parties failing
to perform their obligations is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet, except for the interest rate
swap contracts as disclosed in note 29 and the contingent
liabilities as disclosed in note 38.

As the Group places deposits and enters into derivative
contracts only with banks with high credit ratings, the
credit risk in this regard is low.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Management monitors the credit worthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an on-going basis.
The Group’s receivables from contract work represent
interim payments or retentions certified by the customers
under terms as stipulated in the contracts. Whilst the
Group’s customers in respect of contract work primarily
consist of government departments and developers or
owners with strong financial backgrounds, management
considers that the risk of irrecoverable receivables from
contract work is not significant. In respect of rentals
receivable, to limit the credit risk exposure, deposits are
required of each tenant upon inception of the leases and
monthly rentals are received in advance. Payments from
each tenant are monitored and collectibility is reviewed
closely.

At 31 March 2008, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 31% (2007: 28%) and 85% (2007: 80%)
of the total accounts receivable were due from the one
single external customer and the five single external
customers respectively within the building construction,
maintenance and engineering works segments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 24 and 25, respectively,
to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in short
and long terms. In addition, banking facilities have been

put in place for contingency purposes.
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31 March 2008 ZFEFNE=ZH=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s non-
derivative and derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates, or if
floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)

and the earliest date that the Group could be required to

41. Y085 M Be 4% B H B2 B BOOR ()

B £ ()

A S A 4 A AT AR R A A
P ERAEHNREGRAHN - TEIM
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repay:
Group
A4
Within
1 yearor  Between I Between 2 Over
ondemand  and 2 years  and 5 years 5 years Total
L
AR 1524 2854 S b
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#r T#r T#r T#r T#r
At 31 March 2008 REZFZMEZA =40
Bank borrowings RATH 204,304 132,320 99,072 358,609 794,305
Accounts payable et 251,398 = = - 251,398
Other payables (note 30) SRR 5% (2t 30) 7,953 - - - 7,953
463,655 132,320 99,072 358,609 1,053,656
At 31 March 2007 REBFLEZA =T
Bank borrowings RATfE 319,807 31312 171312 275,210 703,651
Finance lease payables il L A 32 - - - 32
Accounts payable TEfHiE R 262,370 - - - 262,370
Other payables (note 30) KRR (Ha30) 6,114 - - - 6,114
588,323 31,322 11312 275,210 972,167
Company
Y. /|

As at 31 March 2008 and 2007, the Company’s other
payables, as disclosed in note 30, were without interest

and payable within one year or on demand.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management policy is to ensure that the Company will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a periodical basis. As a part of this review,
the directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital and will
balance the Company’s overall capital structure through
new share issues as well as raising new debts or repayment

of existing debts.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio
derived from the consolidated balance sheet. The

following table analyses the Group’s capital structure as
at 31 March 2008:
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2008 2007

“EENE CEFLE

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#7x TF#T

Total interest-bearing borrowings HEH B 692,562 560,573
Less: Pledged bank balance W AR SRAT A5 B (1,612) -
Pledged time deposits CHGAH I FE k (4,423) (8,445)
Cash and cash equivalents Bl& BB &5 EY (83,802) (49,550)

Net borrowings HAE K 602,725 502,578
Total equity HARERR 494,517 308,577
Net gearing ratio AR R 122% 163%




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2008 ZFLLNF=f=1—H

42. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 42. BE AR H BB
On 11 July 2008, the Lands Tribunal granted an order TEA A W) 4 Y g o ml B AR SR R R AR
(as filed on 19 July 2008), upon the application of the PZFRFNFELHT—H > LHFRIEM
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary Good Trader, to sell LA (EHAMAE ZFEZNELHTILH) >
all the undivided shares in the lots at Nos. 125 and 127 HE f 3B T 125 R 12T R 8z
Tung Choi Street, Mongkok by way of a public auction R R B AWM EHRE > DI E 5 R
for redevelopment purposes. The public auction will be Mg - ABMEMNTHFRENZEZ %
held by the trustee, who is independent of the Group, FEN U LA ARG M) HEAT o SEEE 2 3K
appointed by the Tribunal. Good Trader is the owner of BF12598 2 AN 5 12795 & AR (T KR
the whole block of building at No. 125 and the whole AN ZHEHR AN ©

block except Ground Floor at No. 127 Tung Choi Street.

43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 43. MM F2 ik
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised ABBEHREOR 22 NELA T+ NHE
for issue by the board of directors on 18 July 2008. FH g 7 o 0 4 RE A o

156






	Cover

	Contents

	Corporate Information

	Five-Year Financial Summary

	Chairman's Statement

	Summary of Properties

	Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand

	Management Discussion and Analysis

	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

	Corporate Governance Report

	Report of the Directors

	Independent Auditors' Report

	Consolidated Income Statement

	Consolidated Balance Sheet

	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

	Balance Sheet

	Notes to Financial Statements

	Back Cover


